STVLN3Y

AP RENTALS = 2170 8638

* For identification purposes only {45l

AP RENTALS HOLDINGS LIMITED
BRI RERARAE

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RS EEMMIIZERAR)

Stock Code &1 1aE : 1496

ANNUAL REPORT
& 4




EERDCENEEN =

| B Y= (- | B - e I
(MK ES ;:iq_llllqi'-_--f====::!}n.lll
T
l g Rl TUTR A

— e 1§ |y
bk s  EEEEEL 1 &
0 == ‘
1 - t - |
I. | ] "I".;- s

A ¥

A

e

)k .'.'.I_J)H__'




CONTENTS

/1<
4 Corporate Information
8 Chairman’s Statement
14 Management Discussion and Analysis
27 Five Year Financial Summary
30 Directors’ Report
49 Corporate Governance Report
65 Directors and Senior Management
79 Environmental, Social and Governance Report
99 Independent Auditor’s Report
106 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
107 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
109 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
110 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
112 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ARER y N\
E R '
EEENRE
TEBHHE
FERRE
CEEHRE

EELEMEERE

KEMEERER

REMBIREK
ERmEEER
FEREMER
R BRI

]]

]]

]]




AN
At
f,ﬁﬁluﬁfﬁ‘li
At —
L A



We are a leading equipment rental service company in Hong Kong with
the capability of providing a wide range of construction, E&M
engineering and event and entertainment equipment, equipment rental-
related solutions and value-added services to our customers. We serve
a diverse range of customers including leading construction and E&M
engineering companies and large scale event and entertainment
companies. Our rental equipment principally covers power and energy
equipment, high-reach equipment, material handling equipment and
other equipment (include lifting, earth moving, foundation, road and
transportation, tunneling, demolition and small equipment).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of AP Rentals
Holdings Limited (“AP Rentals” or the “Company”), | hereby present
the audited consolidated annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2017 (the “Year” or “FY20177) .

Being a long established and one of the leading equipment rental-
related solution providers, the Group provides equipment rental-
related solutions and value-added services to customers in Hong
Kong and Macau. AP Rentals has always been committed to carrying
out business in an ethical and professional manner and is deemed a
preferred partner by many of its customers and vendors.

The Group, owns and maintains a strong rental fleet of over 1,900
units of equipment and also rents equipment from its suppliers,
mainly from its shareholder and strategic partner, Kanamoto Co.,
Limited (“Kanamoto Japan”), which has allowed the Group to provide
the best equipment to suit customers’ requirements. During the Year,
we have used our initial public offer (“IPO”) proceeds to invest in new
and advanced equipment. Please refer to the section headed
“Directors’ Report” for details of the use of net proceeds from IPO.
We believe that in the longer term, we can improve the overall
competitiveness of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEwE

For FY2017, the Group had a total revenue of approximately
HK$200.5 million, representing a decrease of 16.2% as compared to
that of approximately HK$239.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2016 (“FY2016”). The Group’s administrative expenses increased to
approximately HK$34.4 million (FY2016: approximately HK$27.9
million), representing an increase of approximately 23.2% over last
year. Such increase was mainly due to higher staff cost from
employing more quality staff, increase in expenses for professional
fees, audit fee, marketing expenses, compliance fees and directors’
emoluments. Nevertheless, they were aimed at enhancing the quality
of the Group in long run. The Group’s net profit declined from
approximately HK$20.9 million in FY2016 to approximately HK$12.0
million in FY2017. If the listing expenses of approximately HK$1.1
million were excluded, the Group’s net profit for FY2017 would
amount to approximately HK$13.1 million. Please refer to the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” for details of the
Group’s business performance for the year ended 31 March 2017.
Apart from the financial performance reporting, we are pleased to
present our first Environmental, Social and Governance Report
forming part of this annual report which summarized our effort and
performance in promoting and strengthening corporate social
responsibility among the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERES

During the Year, due to the economic downturn, the construction
industry in both Hong Kong and Macau have been affected. In Hong
Kong, impediment in the approvals of funding for public works
contracts and the slow progress in the HKSAR Legislative Council,
have further affected the construction industry and thus the demand
on the rental equipment. Nevertheless, new sizeable infrastructure
projects such as the Third Runway of the Hong Kong International
Airport (the “Third Runway”) and the Tseung Kwan O-Lam Tin Tunnel
(the “TKO-LT Tunnel”) have commenced during the Year. The Group
is involved in these projects. However, they are still at their initial stage
of development and thus the peak for demand for rental equipment
has not been reached yet. The Group has also spent more effort in
private building sector and event business during the Year. For
instance, we have got more yearly tenders for rental of machines for
the premium customers in private building sector and for event
business, including, our participation in the 2016 FIA Formula E HKT
Kong Kong ePrix.

For Macau, the completion of most of the mega-size casino
construction work has further driven down the demand on rental
equipment. Nevertheless, the shrinking speed seems to be reducing
recently with more public investment. Taking into account the
completion of some mega casino projects, the Group has transferred
some of the fleet equipment to its projects in Hong Kong to enhance
the utilisation rate of its equipment. The Group continues to monitor
economic conditions in Macau and implement flexible effective fleet
management strategies to address the changing market environment
and trends.

RAFE - AREE B BREMMARZERY
XpB-FAENE %-i BERITRRIESER
HAKTREAVBREIIANBERES £ —
i?ﬁé@i%u%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ RENFTR - A &
BB S = e ([ F = FiRE ) el
FREAEMNBRE(SER — EMABE])FH

ARWERBERCORAFEPT  AEETR2EE
o AT T2 B RIDER P ERREE - #RE
HEBREREERE - REBTRRAFZINA
SHENERRXARBERBHOIE - 261
5 HMARAFELEBREZ AL EEREER
HMEFEFLHEERAIAE REFXRY - 82152016
B R B AR S EABEREER L

SEFIJTE - RER D RIEVBEISER I%ﬂﬁﬂ‘z‘ﬁiliﬁ

— AR HEREOFR - CBEERHE
BN ERERER HHMﬁEﬂZ%EH%{ o EERET

REBEZHBRT - AREHI D RIEHABE
EFBBRAARITEEAE - AEETENTRR
PIEVEEA R - I R BB M TISERIT M E
L EHEE A MHMAA T RES o

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEwE

Looking ahead, despite macro political and economic problems, we
have confidence in the demand for rental equipment. The Group will
continue to focus on seizing the enormous potential in the Hong
Kong market. Other than the Third Runway and the TKO-LT Tunnel
projects, we will also focus on the subsequent construction of the
“Ten Mega Infrastructure”, projects of private developers and coming
mega infrastructure projects, such as the Central Kowloon Route and
Kai Tak Sports Park. We also expect that the Hong Kong Government
will continue to make substantial investment in infrastructure, property
and land development through boosting the housing supply of both
private and public sectors and implementing urban development
projects as described in The 2017 Policy Address of HKSAR.

For Macau market, we believe that the demand for construction
equipment will remain at a low level due to the completion of major
casino projects but we expect that the market will become stable in
the longer term with more investment to be made by the Macau
Government in public housing and reclamation projects, which were
addressed in The 2017 Policy Address of the Macao Special
Administrative Region (“MSAR”).

The Group will expand our trading business and rental solution
business in Hong Kong and overseas. We will also make continuous
investment in our rental fleet — disposing those aged equipment and
investing on advanced equipment so as to reduce our cost for
maintenance and improve our competitive edge through providing
better rental solution to our customers. In the meantime, we will also
closely monitor our operating cost so as to enhance our overall
competitiveness in the market and thus improve our profitability.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERES

Geographically, we would explore more business opportunities
overseas. In March 2017, we have already established our wholly-
owned subsidiary in Singapore for carrying trading and rental
business for construction equipment. We are looking forward to
expanding our trading business in South East Asia countries lying
along the “Belt & Road”, being stated in the PRC’s “Belt and Road”
strategy.

Last but not least, | would like to express my gratitude to the Board for
its brilliant leadership, the entire staff for their untiring efforts during the
Year, as well as the strong support from our shareholders (the
“Shareholders”). | would also like to thank our investors, customers,
suppliers and business partners for their backing. We will continue to
fortify AP Rental’s leadership in the equipment rental industry, realise
sustainable growth and generate satisfactory returns for Shareholders.

To reward and thank our Shareholders for their support, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKO.28 cent per
share (FY2016: nil cent per share). An interim dividend for the Year of
HKO0.28 cent per share was paid in January 2017.

Mr. Lau Pong Sing
Chairman; Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
27 June 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R E DT

The Group is a leading equipment rental service company in Hong
Kong. The principal activities of the Group encompass the provision
of equipment rental-related solutions and value-added services to
customers. The Group owns and maintains a strong rental fleet of
over 1,900 units of equipment and also rents equipment from its
suppliers, mainly from its shareholder and strategic partner,
Kanamoto Japan, which is one of the leading construction equipment
rental groups in Japan. Leveraging on the Group’s competitive
strengths, the Group strives to lead the industry using its ability to
provide a wide range of well-maintained equipment supplemented by
various equipment rental solutions. The Group serves a diverse range
of customers in Hong Kong and Macau and has established stable
and long-term relationships with major customers. The Group has
been providing equipment and rental solutions to various mega public
projects in Hong Kong, including those among the “Ten Major
Infrastructure Projects”, the Third Runway and the TKO-LT Tunnel.
We also provide specific rental solutions to various prestigious land
developers and public utilities companies in Hong Kong.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R DT

During the year under review, the construction industry in both Hong
Kong and Macau got hit by economic downturn, impediment in
approvals of funding for public work contracts and the slow progress
in the HKSAR Legislative Council and the completion of major casino
projects in Macau.

In Hong Kong, some of the mega public projects in Hong Kong have
been completed during the Year, including the South Island Line and
the Kwun Tong Line Extension. New mega public projects were
commenced, including the the Third Runway and the TKO-LT Tunnel,
which helped to fill up the demand gaps following the completion of
certain public projects. However, they are still at their initial stage of
the work and thus the peak for demand for rental equipment has not
been reached yet. Furthermore, the continuous redeployment of
construction equipment from Macau to Hong Kong by the Group as
a result of the completion of certain major casino projects has
increased the supply of rental equipment in Hong Kong. As a result,
the Group’s rental income has been slightly affected in Hong Kong.
Meanwhile, our trading business was greatly affected due to the
uncertainty in making investment caused by the impediment in
approvals of funding for public work contracts. For Macau, the Group
experienced huge tumble in the results of both the trading and rental
businesses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREHHEH T

The Group’s revenue for FY2017 decreased by approximately 16.2%
to approximately HK$200.5 million as compared with revenue of
approximately HK$239.3 million for FY2016. The Group’s gross profit
was down by approximately 39.6% from approximately HK$76.8
million in FY2016 to approximately HK$46.4 million in FY2017, with
gross profit margin at approximately 23.1% (FY2016: approximately
32.1%). The Group’s net profit decreased by approximately 42.8%
from approximately HK$20.9 million for the year ended 31 March
2016 to approximately HK$12.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2017. Before deducting the listing expenses of approximately HK$1.1
million in FY2017 (FY2016: approximately HK$21.3 million), the Group
would have recorded net profit of approximately HK$13.1 million
(FY2016: approximately, HK$42.2 million). The decrease in net profit
was mainly due to (i) decrease in rental income and trading income
from machinery in Macau which are due to the slowdown of business
in Macau; (i) decrease in trading income in Hong Kong, which largely
fluctuates with market demand based on customers’ equipment
needs and sentiment in investment; (iii) the increase in depreciation
expenses for the Group’s owned fleet of equipment due to the
Group’s purchase of equipment as part of its strategy to expand its
rental fleet; (iv) the increase of rental price charged by Kanamoto (HK)
Co., Ltd (“Kanamoto HK”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Kanamoto Japan; and (v) the increase in administrative expenses due
to the increase in expenses for professional fees and compliance
fees, audit fee, director emoluments, salary expenses (owing to
increase in headcount, annual salary increment and compensation for
unused annual leave) and public relation expenses, following the
listing of the Company in April 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR E R EH T
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(i) Rental income of machinery

During the year under review, the Group’s rental income from
rental services, which involved the rental of construction,
electrical and mechanical engineering and event and
entertainment equipment in Hong Kong and Macau, decreased
by approximately 16.7% to approximately HK$143.1 million for
FY2017 (FY2016: approximately HK$171.8 million). Rental
income from rental services accounted for approximately 71.4%
of the Group’s total revenue for FY2017. Approximately 69.5%
of the decrease in rental income came from Macau, which was
mainly the result of the slowdown of business in Macau
following the completion of certain casino projects.
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E7 EIES * Underlying profit and total comprehensive income for the Year represents
reported profit attributable to owners of the Company before deducting
one-off listing expenses of approximately HK$1.11 million for the year ended
31 March 2017 (FY2016: approximately HK$21.27 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

I8 [ i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

AP Rentals Holdings Li
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Operating service income

The Group offers equipment operating services in Hong Kong
by sending equipment operators to operate the equipment at
the job sites of its customers. For the year ended 31 March
2017, revenue from equipment operating services increased by
approximately 30.5% to approximately HK$26.5 million
(FY2016: approximately HK$20.3 million), and accounted for
approximately 13.2% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2017. The increase in operating service
income was attributable to the great demand for operators by
sizable construction companies in Hong Kong for they want to
concentrate their manpower in managing the construction
progress.

Other service income

The Group’s other service income, which arise from rental
arrangements including repair, maintenance and technical
support services during the rental period, greatly increased
during the Year and amounted to approximately HK$13.2
million for the year ended 31 March 2017 (FY2016:
approximately HK$10.3 million). The Group’s other service
income accounted for approximately 28.2% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year under review.

Sales of machinery and spare parts

To complement the Group’s equipment rental solutions, the
Group sources new and used equipment and spare parts from
different suppliers for on-selling to customers. Due to the
fluctuation of demand for construction equipment, the Group’s
revenue from sales of machinery and spare parts amounted
decreased by 52.4% year-on-year to approximately HK$17.6
million, (FY2016: approximately HK$37.0 million), which
accounted for approximately 8.8% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 March 2017. They also represented 50%
of the total decrease of the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group would remain focused in the Hong Kong market in the
coming year. Other than the Third Runway and the TKO-LT Tunnel
projects, the Group would also focus on those subsequent
construction of the “Ten Mega Infrastructure”, projects of private
developers and coming mega infrastructure projects, such as the
Central Kowloon Route and Kai Tak Sports Park. The Group also
expects that the Hong Kong Government would continue to make
substantial investment in infrastructure, property and land
development through boosting the housing supply of both private and
public sectors and implementing urban development projects as
described in The 2017 Policy Address of HKSAR.

In addition, the Group is preparing to expand its trading business
overseas and the establishment of our Singapore’s wholly-owned
subsidiary was our first move. We would dispose of more aged and
low utilized machines. This would give room for our strategic
investment in specific advanced and new machines so as to keep
abreast of local legislative and market requirements, including the Air
Pollution Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission) Regulation
(Chapter 311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong). We would also rationalize
the size of our existing plant fleet to reduce our maintenance, storage
and depreciation costs. The Group aims to further enhance its
efficiency and the quality of its equipment rental service by improving
its equipment maintenance facilities and installing a GPS equipment
monitoring system. As a result, we hope to increase our rental
revenues and proceeds from disposals for making further re-
investment.

Furthermore, we would also explore more in-depth into other revenue
sources — the other service. We strive to provide more kinds of other
services to our customers, such as the provision of training and more
advanced value-added services so as to bolster the competitiveness
and quality of our rental services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group expects that the equipment rental market will continue to
expand in the future due to the flexibility and cost effectiveness that
rental equipment offers to construction companies. However, as
disclosed in our interim report for the six months ended 30
September 2016, in the short term the outlook remains uncertain.
The current over-supply of construction equipment due to the weak
customer demand are driving down rental rates and prices. The
Group is also experiencing more pressure from its customers for
more competitive pricing for its equipment, which may inevitably
further suppress the Group’s profit margin if the Group is to maintain
its market share. We believe that this trend will continue until the
major infrastructure projects in Hong Kong reach their major stage of
construction. For Macau, we believe that the demand for construction
equipment will remain at a low level due to the completion of major
casino projects.

Looking ahead, drawing on the Group’s unique competitive edges
and the abundant operating experience of its management team, the
Group would strive to lead the industry with its offer of high-quality
equipment, premium service and equipment solutions and also
extend our business coverage in local market and overseas. Last but
not least, we would strive to maintain our cost control management
to enhance our competitiveness and to improve our profitability in the
future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded total revenue
of approximately HK$200.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2017,
representing a decrease of approximately 16.2% as compared to the
total revenue of approximately HK$239.3 million for the year ended
31 March 2016. The decrease in revenue mainly resulted from the
decrease in rental income in Macau and the decrease in trading
income.

For details, please see the discussion on the Group’s segmental
performance in the section headed “Segment Analysis” above.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$154.1
million for the year ended 31 March 2017, representing a year-on-
year decrease of approximately 5.2% (FY2016: approximately
HK$162.5 million). Cost of sales mainly comprised machinery hiring
expenses, staff costs for the Group’s equipment operators,
technicians and truck drivers, costs for machinery and parts for
trading and depreciation, which together accounted for approximately
87.3% of the Group’s total cost of sales in FY2017 (FY2016:
approximately 88.1%).

Among the four major items under cost of sales, the Group recorded
a decrease of approximately 18.9% in machinery hiring expenses
during the year under review, owing to the decrease in demand for
rented machines from the market in Hong Kong and Macau due to
completion of major casino projects. Such decrease was partially
offset by the increase in rental rate charged by Kanamoto HK. Staff
costs increased by approximately 29.8% over last year’s, mainly due
to increase in the demand for the Group’s operators by the market
and therefore more operators were hired by the Group to meet such
increase in demand. The increase in wages over last year was caused
by the increase in headcount, annual salary increment and
compensation for unused annual leave during the year ended 31
March 2017. Depreciation increased by approximately 32.7% year-
on-year mainly due to additions of new plant to fit with the market’s
demand. Costs for machinery and parts decreased by approximately
58.4% following the decline in sales of our machinery and spare
parts. Lastly, the returned machines from Macau also increased our
cost of spare parts for maintenance by approximately 30.7% over last
year, to HK$7.1 million in FY2017.
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s overall gross profit decreased by approximately 39.6%
from approximately HK$76.8 million for the year ended 31 March
2016 to approximately HK$46.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2017. The Group’s gross profit margin was approximately 23.1% for
the year ended 31 March 2017 (FY2016: approximately 32.1%). The
drop in the gross profit margin was mostly due to the increase in the
cost of sales items as explained above.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2017, administrative expenses
amounted to approximately HK$34.4 million (FY2016: approximately
HK$27.9 million), representing an increase of approximately 23.2%
over last year. The increase in administrative expenses was mainly
due to the increase in expenses for professional fees and compliance
fees, audit fee, director emoluments and fees, salary expenses (owing
to increase in headcount, annual salary increment and compensation
for unused annual leave) and public relation expenses, following the
listing of the Company in April 2016.

Listing Expenses
The Group recognised listing expenses of approximately HK$1.1
million in FY2017. (FY2016: approximately HK$21.3 million).

Finance cost

Finance costs comprised interest on the Group’s borrowings and
finance leases, which amounted to approximately HK$2.4 million for
FY2017 (FY2016: approximately HK$1.7 million). The increase was
due to the increase in Group’s borrowings and finance leases in the
second half of FY2016 with the full year effect of such finance costs
being reflected in FY2017. During the year under review, the Group
has not raised any new borrowings nor finance leases. Interest rate
increased in the United States has immaterial effect over the Group’s
finance costs.
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Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
The Group recorded net profit of approximately HK$12.0 million for
the year ended 31 March 2017 (FY2016: approximately HK$20.9
million), representing a net profit margin of approximately 6.0%
(FY2016: approximately 8.7%). Before deducting the listing expenses
of approximately HK$1.1 million, the Group’s net profit and net profit
margin for the year ended 31 March 2017 would be approximately
HK$13.1 million and approximately 6.5%, respectively.

Capital Expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditures during the year under review
primarily comprised expenditures on plant and machinery, leasehold
improvements and motor vehicles, amounting to a total of
approximately HK$68.3 million (FY2016: approximately HK$81.1
million). The vast majority of the capital expenditures were used to
fund the expansion of the Group’s owned rental fleet of machinery,
which accounted for approximately 96.9% of the total capital
expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Liquidity and Financial Resources Review

The Group financed its operations through a combination of cash
flow from operations, borrowings and finance leases. As at 31 March
2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$45.0 million (31 March 2016: approximately HK$22.3 million) that
were mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Japanese Yen and
MOP, and had borrowings and obligations under finance leases of
approximately HK$33.8 million (31 March 2016: approximately
HK$75.7 million) that were mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$62.8 million (31 March 2016: approximately
HK$128.6 million), of which approximately HK$32.0 million (31 March
2016: approximately HK$72.0 million) had been drawn down, and
approximately HK$30.8 million (31 March 2016: approximately
HK$56.6 million) were unutilised.

As at 31 March 2017, the gearing ratio of the Group was nil (2016:
approximately 44.4%), which was calculated based on the net debt
divided by total equity. Net debt is defined as the sum of the
borrowings, bank overdraft and obligations under finance leases,
minus the cash and cash equivalents.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

Certain transactions of the Group are denominated in currencies
which are different from the functional currencies of the Group,
namely, Hong Kong Dollars, and therefore the Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk. Payments made by the Group for the
settlement of its purchases from suppliers are generally denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars, Japanese Yen, Euro and US Dollars. Payments
received by the Group from its customers are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars and MOP.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the Group will continue to monitor closely its exposure to
currency movement and take proactive measures.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(81 March 2016: Nil).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of
Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint
Ventures

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31 March 2017
(2016 FY: nil).

Significant Investments

On 3 March 2017, the Group set up a wholly-owned subsidiary,
namely AP Equipment Rentals (Singapore) Pte. Ltd (“AP Singapore”)
in Singapore. The subsidiary was incorporated with an authorized and
issued share capital of SG$100,000. The subsidiary has not
commenced business as at 31 March 2017.

Capital Commitments and Future Plans for
Material Investments or Capital Assets

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has capital commitments of
approximately HK$12.0 million (31 March 2016: approximately
HK$1.8 million), to acquire plant and equipment for the Group. The
source of funding for this capital commitments would be come from
the cash in bank as at 31 March 2017 and cash generated from
operations.
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Pledge of Assets

Deposit placed for a life insurance policy of approximately HK$2.6
million as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: approximately HK$2.5
million), property, plant and machinery of approximately HK$33.0
million as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: approximately HK$62.3
million), a certificate of deposit of approximately HK$6.0 million (31
March 2016: Nil) and bank deposit of approximately HK$2.4 million
(31 March 2016: approximately HK$9.2 million) have been pledged to
secure the Group’s borrowings of approximately HK$33.8 million (31
March 2016: approximately HK$75.2 million).

Human Resources and Employees’
Remuneration

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had 170 employees (31 March
2016: 146 employees), of which 162 employees are in Hong Kong (31
March 2016: 138 employees), 6 employees are in Macau (31 March
2016: 8 employees) and 2 employees are in Singapore (31 March
2016: nil). Employees’ remuneration packages are determined with
reference to the market information and individual performance and
will be reviewed on a regular basis. The remuneration policy will be
reviewed by the Board from time to time. In addition to basic
remuneration, the Group also provides medical insurance, make
contributions to provident funds and provides other benefits to the
employees. The total staff cost, including remuneration,
compensation for annual leave, other benefits and contributions to
retirement schemes for the directors of the Company and other staff
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to
approximately HK$52.5 million (2016: approximately HK$42.3 million).
The increase in staff cost was mainly due to increase in emoluments
of the directors of the Company, increase in headcount,
compensation for annual leave and salary increment during the year
ended 31 March 2017.
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Human Resources and Employees’
Remuneration (Continued)

The Group’s technical staff attend seminars jointly conducted by
manufacturers and the Group to acquire product knowledge to
ensure they are equipped with the necessary skills and knowledge to
perform their duties. Such seminars include training regarding the
equipment structures, operational features, operator safety training
and equipment repair. In addition to the training jointly conducted by
manufacturers and the Group, the Group’s technical staff also attend
external training courses and obtained relevant certificates.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the period from the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2017,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AF B E

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY LFEUBHRE

Revenue Wizs

Leasing income of AR AR A

machinery 143,121 171,777 161,660 143,657 119,422
Sales of machinery and e N ZFSEE
parts 17,612 36,957 38,530 46,444 17,982
Operating service income & & RFEUA 26,512 20,329 16,926 19,295 16,404
Other service income H AR WA 13,246 10,278 11,109 8,553 5,943
200,491 239,341 228,225 217,949 159,751

Gross profit EF 46,391 76,828 69,321 61,693 53,313
Other income E A 4,768 2,552 2,065 1,152 1,087
Other gains and (losses) Hubrzs & (E58) 1,956 494 2,625 3,172 (446)
Profit before taxation M Bt AL 7 15,283 29,030 51,472 47,541 42,264
Income tax expense Frigfif sz (3,312) (8,107) (8,547) (7,416) (6,967)
Profit and total INEEm A K

comprehensive HEWEETE

income for the year 11,971 20,923 42,925 40,125 35,297
Per share data BgRER
Earnings per share — BREN —

basic (HK cents) FEAR (B 1.41 2.94 6.02 5.63 4.95
Financial ratios /g 3n
Gross profit margin ERIR 23.1% 32.1% 30.4% 28.3% 33.4%
Net profit margin AR = 6.0% 8.7% 18.8% 18.4% 22.1%
Return on total assets BEERRE 3.6% 7.5% 18.1% 22.3% 33.2%
Return on equity HEZE O 3R =& 5.1% 17.4% 38.8% 45.8% 61.1%
Current ratio MBI & 1.77 0.77 0.89 0.99 1.47
Assets and Liabilities BERAE
Total assets BEE 334,856 279,071 237,471 180,318 106,278
Total liabilities BAaR (101,424)  (158,579) (126,902) (92,674) (48,492)
Total Equity EIEES 233,432 120,492 110,569 87,644 57,786
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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REVENUE (HK$ Million)
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Underlying profit and total comprehensive income for the Year represents reported profit attributable to owners of the Company

before deducting one-off listing expenses of approximately HK$1.11 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 (FY2016:

approximately HK$21.27 million).
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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FINANCIAL RATIOS

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN (%)
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Underlying profit and total comprehensive income for the Year represents reported profit attributable to owners of the Company
before deducting one-off listing expenses of approximately HK$1.11 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 (FY2016:
approximately HK$21.27 million).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2017.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the provision of equipment rental-
related solutions and value-added services to customers. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2017, distributable reserves of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$102.7 million (2016: HK$93.1 million).

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2017
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to
176 of this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final divided of HK0.28
cent per share (FY2016: nil cent per share). An interim dividend for
the Year of HK0.28 cent per share was paid in January 2017.

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion of the Group’s future business development are set out in
the Chairman’s Statement and the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section on pages 8 to 13 and on pages 14 to 26 of this
annual report respectively.
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The equipment rental industry is cyclical in general and its revenues
are tied to general economic conditions and to conditions in the
construction and electrical and mechanical engineering (“E&M” or
“E&M engineering”) industry in particular. Our products and services
are used primarily in construction projects which is cyclical and
sensitive to changes in general economic conditions. Weakness in
our end-markets, such as a decline in construction and E&M
engineering activity, may decrease the demand for the Group’s
equipment or the rental rates or prices that the Group can charge.
Factors that may cause weakness in our end-markets include:

(i) weakness in economic growth in Hong Kong and in Macau or
the onset of a new recession;

(i)  slowdown in the expansion of the construction industry in Hong
Kong and Macau where we operate;

(iy  increase in the cost of construction materials and labour costs;
(iv)  increases in interest rates; and
(v)  adverse changes in the government infrastructure spending.

Further description of possible capital risks and financial risks facing
the Group are set out in note 27 and note 28 to the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
and the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Foreign Exchange Risk” on page 24 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five Year
Financial Summary and the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Financial Review” on pages 27 to 29 and on pages
21 to 26 of this annual report respectively. Particulars of important
events affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of the
financial year ended 31 March 2017, if any, can also be found in the
above sections of this annual report and notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment. In terms of environmental friendliness, we have obtained
the Quality Powered Mechanical Equipment (“QPME”) identification
for most of our rental equipment to which the QPME system is
applicable, and we have filed application for all our equipment which
are subject to the Air Pollution Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery)
(Emission) Regulation (Chapter 311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“NRMM” Regulation), and have obtained the NRMM label for most of
such equipment.

Further details on (i) the Group’s environmental policies and
performance; and (ii) the Group’s compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group are set out in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 79 to
98 of this annual report.

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers are
keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed to
establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing cooperation
with its business partners. The Company provides a fair and safe
workplace, promotes diversity to our staff, provides competitive
remuneration and benefits and career development opportunities
based on their merits and performance. The Group also puts ongoing
efforts to provide adequate trainings and development resources to
the employees so that they can keep abreast of the latest
development of the market and the industry and, at the same time,
improve their performance and self-fulfillment in their positions.

The Group provides a wide range of construction, E&M engineering
and event and entertainment equipment, equipment rental-related
solutions and value-added services to customers. The Group
maintains good working relationships between the Group and the
customers. The Group enhances the relationship by continuous
interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing market
demand for different products so that the Group can respond
proactively.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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The Group maintains sound business relationship with its suppliers
and service providers, including our strategic partner and our
shareholder, Kanamoto Japan, and our key suppliers. In order to
have better and close monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the
Group’s management conducts performance review regularly
targeting the Group’s major suppliers and service providers, and
communicates with them for rectification and improvements.

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last 5 financial years are set out on page 27 of this annual report.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the period from the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2017,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.
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There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$50,000 (FY2016: HK$56,000).

To attract and retain the most suitable personnel for development of
the Group, the Group has adopted the share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 17 March 2016. Share options may be
granted to eligible employees of the Group as a long-term incentive.
From the date of the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to
31 March 2017, no share option has been granted or agreed to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
(@ The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme
and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that Eligible Participants (as defined below)
had made or may make to the Group.

(b) The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible
Participants with an opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company with the view to achieving the
following principal objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the
Group; and

(i)  attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing
business relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are, will or expected to be
beneficial to the Group.
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1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
(Continued)

(©)

For the purpose of the Share Option Scheme, “Eligible
Participant” means any person who satisfies the eligibility
criteria in paragraph 2 below.

Who may join and basis for determining

eligibility

@)

The Board may at its discretion grant options to: (i) any
director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest
or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (i) the
trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include any director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

In order for a person to satisfy the Board that he/she/it is
qualified to be (or, where applicable, continues to qualify
to be) an Eligible Participant, such person shall provide all
such information as the Board may request for the
purpose of assessing his/her/its eligibility (or continuing
eligibility).

Each grant of options to a connected person (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules), must be approved in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Should the Board resolve that a grantee fails/has failed or
otherwise is/has been unable to meet the continuing
eligibility criteria under the Share Option Scheme, the
Company would (subject to any relevant laws and
regulations) be entitled to deem any outstanding option or
part thereof, granted to such grantee and to the extent
not already exercised, as lapsed, subject to certain
requirements (the details of which are set out in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV of
the prospectus of the Company dated 24 March 2016
(the “Prospectus”)).
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AP Rentals Holdings Limited

3. Maximum number of shares of the

Company (“Shares”) available for issue

(@  The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. No options may be granted under any schemes of
the Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this
will result in the said 30% limit being exceeded.

(b)  The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes involving the issue or
grant of options or similar rights over Shares or other
securities by the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date, and such 10% limit represents 86,400,000
Shares. 86,400,000 Shares represents 10% of the total
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

The maximum entitlement of each
participant under the Share Option Scheme
No option may be granted to any Eligible Participant which, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options already
granted or to be granted to such Eligible Participant under the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding share options) in the twelve-month period up to
and including the date of such new grant exceeding 1% in
aggregate of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of such grant. Any grant of further share options above
this limit shall be subject to certain requirements provided under
the Listing Rules.

Time of exercise of option

(@ Subject to certain restrictions contained in the Share
Option Scheme, an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the terms of grant thereof at any time during the
applicable option period, which is not more than ten years
from the date of grant of option.
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5. Time of exercise of option (Continued)

(b)  There is no general requirement on the minimum period
for which an option must be held or the performance
targets which must be achieved before an option can be
exercised under the terms of the Share Option Scheme.
However, at the time of granting any option, the Board
may, on a case by case basis, make such grant subject
to such conditions, restrictions or limitations including
(without limitation) those in relation to the minimum period
of the options to be held and/or the performance targets
to be achieved as the Board may determine in its absolute
discretion.

Consideration for share options and the
exercise price

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Board shall be entitled at any time on a business day within ten
years commencing on the effective date of the Share Option
Scheme to offer the grant of an option to any Eligible Participant
as the Board may in its absolute discretion select in accordance
with the eligibility criteria set out in the Share Option Scheme.
An offer shall be accepted when the Company receives the duly
signed offer letter together with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1.00 (or such other sum in any currency as the Board may
determine).

The exercise price for any Share under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board and notified
to each grantee and shall be not less than the highest of () the
closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a business day, (i) an amount equivalent to the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant option
and (jii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant. The
exercise price shall also be subject to certain adjustments (the
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV of the Prospectus).
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7. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
Options may be granted to Eligible Participants under the Share
Option Scheme during the period of ten years commencing on
the effective date of the Share Option Scheme.

For further details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages IV-12 to IV-22 in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are as follows:

12.78%
28.29%

The largest customer
The five largest customers in aggregate

The percentages of total purchases (defined as the sum of (i) the
Group’s total cost of sales less staff cost and depreciation and (i)
purchases of the Group’s owned rental equipment) for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

34.58%
81.16%

The largest supplier (Note 1)
The five largest suppliers in aggregate

Note 1:  Being Kanamoto HK, the wholly owned subsidiary of Kanamoto Japan, a

company holding approximately 7.5% of the shareholding of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

At no time during the year did the Directors, their close associates or
any shareholders of the Company, which to the best knowledge of
the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, have any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers except the above as disclosed.
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The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors
LAU Pong Sing (Chairman)
CHAN Kit Mui, Lina

Non-executive Directors
Kitagawa Ken (ceased to be a director on 20 June 2017)
Lu Tao (appointed on 20 June 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors
Ho Chung Tai, Raymond

Siu Chak Yu

Li Ping Chi

Pursuant to Article 83 of the Articles, the Board shall have the power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as addition to the Board. Any director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

By virtue of Article 83 of the Articles, Lu Tao holds office only until the
2017 annual general mesting of the Company (“AGM”) and is subject
to re-election at the 2017 AGM. By virtue of Article 84 of the Articles, 2
Directors, namely, Lau Pong Sing and Chan Kit Mui, Lina will retire from
office at the 2017 AGM of the Company and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 65 to 78 of this annual report.

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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As at 31 March 2017, the interests or short positions of the Directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFQO”)), which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which the directors and chief executive were deemed or
taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register therein, or were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) are as follows:

Name of Director Nature of Interest

Espns BEME

Mr. Lau Pong Sing (Note 1, 2)
SUFPRK 5 A& (BEET ~ 2) R EERER
Interest of spouse
BB

Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (Note 3, 4)
PRZ2Hg 224 (FES ~ 4) Ry AR
Interest of spouse
BB

The Company was directly owned as to 42.08% by New Club
House International Holdings Limited (“New Club House”). By virtue
of his 100% shareholding in New Club House, Mr. Lau Pong Sing
(“Mr. Lau”) is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares
held by New Club House.

Note 1:

Note 2:  Mr. Lau is the spouse of Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (“Ms. Chan”). Under
the SFO, Mr. Lau is deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares in which Ms. Chan is interested.

Note 3: The Company was directly owned as to 32.92% by Great Club
House Holdings Limited (“Great Club House”). By virtue of her 100%
shareholding in Great Club House, Ms. Chan is deemed to be

interested in the same number of Shares held by Great Club House.

Note 4: Ms. Chan is the spouse of Mr. Lau. Under the SFO, Ms. Chan is
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr.

Lau is interested.
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As at 31 March 2017, so far as the directors are aware, the following

persons (other than the directors or chief executive of the Company),

were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the shares or

short positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the

Company, which are required to be disclosed under provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which will be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register

referred to therein, were as follows:

Name of Shareholders

BRRE®

New Club House' (Note 1)
New Club House' (Fff& 1)
Great Club House? (Note 2)
Great Club House? (Fft5£2)
Kanamoto Japan® (Note 3)

Nature of Interest

EEME

Beneficial interest
Bntks
Beneficial interest
EnEn
Beneficial interest

SRR (MH7E3) EamfEn
Note 1: It is directly wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Pong Sing. It is a controlling

shareholder holding 363,528,000 shares of the Company.

Note 2: It is directly wholly-owned by Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina. It is a
controlling shareholder holding 284,471,352 shares of the
Company.

Note 3: It is a shareholder holding 64,800,648 shares of the Company.

L : Long position

1

“New Club House”: New Club House International Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability on
8 June 2015.

“Great Club House”: Great Club House Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 8 June
2015.

“Kanamoto Japan”: Kanamoto Co., Ltd.* (k=X 24717 F ), a company
incorporated in Japan on 24 September 1937.
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363,528,000 (L) 42.08%
284,471,352 (L) 32.92%
64,800,648 (L) 7.5%
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A 7] 363,528,000 B A 17 AU IRAE IR ER ©
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MizE3 : HAEAARF 64,800,648 BEA D HIALEE
L : e
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ERBRZBESTMEINEREELT
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Article 164 of the Articles of Association of the Company provides,
among other things, that the Directors and other officers shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses as a result of any act or failure to act in
carrying out his/her functions. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors and officers liability insurance.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in this annual report, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
subsisted during the year ended 31 March 2017.

Other than the section headed “Share Option Scheme” disclosed
above, at no time during the year, the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements which
would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
subsidiaries. Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 was granted any
right to subscribe for the shares or debentures of the Company or its
subsidiaries or had exercised any such right during the year.

As at 31 March 2017, the Directors were not aware of any business
or interest of the Directors and their respective associates that had
competed or might compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interests which any such person had or might have
with the Group except those disclosed under the section headed
“Non-Competition Undertaking by Controlling Shareholders”.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group employed a total of 170 employees.
For the year ended 31 March 2017, the staff costs of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$52.5 million.

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications,
competence and job nature.
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The remuneration of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparing with market conditions. The Company has adopted a
share option scheme as an incentive to eligible employees.

The Group has established a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for its Hong Kong employees. The assets of the
scheme are held separately in funds which are under the control of
independent trustees. The retirement benefit scheme contributions
charged to profit or loss represent contributions paid or payable by
the Group to the scheme at 5% of each of the employees’ monthly
relevant income capped at HK$30,000 per month (increased from
HK$25,000 per month with effect from 1 June 2014).

The total costs charged to profit or loss for the year of approximately
HK$1,860,000 (FY2016: approximately HK$1,398,000), comprised
approximately HK$72,000 and HK$1,788,000 (FY2016: approximately
HK$72,000 and HK$1,326,000) in directors’ emoluments and other
staff costs respectively, and represented contributions paid or payable
to the schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting
period. At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future obligations.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is
held by the public as required under the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which any Director or Controlling Shareholders of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
March 2017 or during the year.
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The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange since 8 April 2016. The net proceeds from IPO of
the Company (after deducting underwriting fee and relevant
expenses) were approximately HK$81.8 million. The following table
sets forth the status of the use of proceeds from IPO as at 31 March
2017:

Net proceeds

RATRMDE201644 A8 BB EM iR £
e RARBXARBENMEREFEHGRE
HEREBEMS%)NABISEEAE L TRH
FIR2017E3 A1 B B R AR EEMENIA
FERAER

Utilised up to  Unutilised as at

from IPO 31 March 2017 31 March 2017
BEEZE-Z—tHF R-ZE—tF
BXAMRE =A=+-—HIL =A=+—H
P8 RIEFE 2B AMRE REARIE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHTT
Investment in rental equipment A RERE 58,242 51,540 6,702
Development of GPS equipment 2R 2 IREE IR E
monitoring system EERZLR 8,507 - 8,507
Investment in transportation BERRERE
equipment 5,808 990 4,818
Improvement of facility HAREERERE
for maintenance of the Bty
Group’s equipment 3,517 319 3,198
General working capital —REEES 5,726 - 5,726
81,800 52,849 28,051

The unutilised amounts of the net proceeds from IPO will be applied
in such manner consistent with that mentioned in the Prospectus.

Upon the listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange on 8 April
2016, certain transactions between the Group and certain connected
persons of the Company have become continuing connected
transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Set out
below are details of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Company (which are subject to the reporting and
annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules)
since the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2017.
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Asoem Framework Agreement

The Company entered into a framework agreement with Asoem
(Int’l) Investment Company Limited (“Asoem”) on 17 March
2016 (the “Asoem Framework Agreement”) governing the
supply of (i) spare parts for the construction equipment of the
Group; (i) management service for the warehouse of the Group
which stores the spare parts belonging to the Group; and (jii)
certain construction equipment, from Asoem to the Group from
time to time. The term of the Asoem Framework Agreement is
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2018. For details of this
continuing connected transaction, please refer to the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of the
Prospectus.

As Asoem is owned as to 100% by Lau Pong Man, the brother
of Lau Pong Sing and the brother-in-law of Chan Kit Mui Lina,
each being a director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company, Asoem is therefore their associate and a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of the fee payable to Asoem, or
companies controlled by it, by the Group for the year ended 31
March 2017 was HK$5,800,000 and the actual amount of fee
payable by the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 was
approximately HK$1,310,000, not exceeding the annual cap
amount. The annual cap amount of the fee payable to Asoem,
or companies controlled by it, by the Group for the year ending
31 March 2018 is HK$7,000,000.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited
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A-One Pong Framework Agreement

The Company entered into a framework agreement with A-One
Pong Construction Equipment Limited (“A-One Pong”) on 17
March 2016 (the “A-One Pong Framework Agreement”)
governing the sales and rental of construction equipment and
vehicles by A-One Pong to the Group from time to time. The
term of the agreement granted under the A-One Pong
Framework Agreement is valid from the Listing Date to 31
March 2018. For details of this continuing connected
transaction, please refer to the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the Prospectus.

As A-One Pong is wholly-owned by Lau Pong Ming, brother of
Lau Pong Sing and the brother-in-law of Chan Kit Mui Lina,
each being a director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company, A-One Pong is therefore their associate and a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount for the transactions under the A-One
Pong Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2017
was HK$7,800,000 and the actual amount of consideration for
the transactions for the year ended 31 March 2017 was
approximately HK$2,655,000, not exceeding the annual cap
amount. The annual cap amount for the transactions under the
A-One Pong Framework Agreement for the year ending 31
March 2018 is HK$8,800,000.

No related party transactions disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements in the year constitute a non-
exempt continuing connected transaction as defined under the
Listing Rules.

als Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Pursuant to Rule 14A. 55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) according to the
agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740, Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rule issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions set out on pages 44 to 46 of this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK0.28
cent per share for the year ended 31 March 2017. In order to be
eligible to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 21 August 2017. The book close period for the final dividend will
be from 31 August 2017 to 4 September 2017 (both days inclusive).
The final dividend will be paid to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company as at the close of
business on 4 September 2017, if the proposal is approved by the
Shareholders at the 2017 AGM of the Company. It is expected that
the final dividend will be paid on or around 14 September 2017.
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For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2017 AGM
of the Company to be held on 25 August 2017, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 22 August 2017 to 25
August 2017 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the 2017 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 21 August 2017.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2017 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board

LAU Pong Sing
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 27 June 2017
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and leading the Group to attain
better results and improve its corporate image with effective corporate
governance procedures.

In 2016, the Company has engaged an international consulting firm
(the “Consultant”) to oversee and recommend appropriate actions so
as to ensure that the Company is complying with the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) in relation to corporate
governance before and after listing. During the year under review, the
Company improved its corporate governance practices continuously
with reference to the Consultant’s recommendations. Moreover, the
Company has adopted its corporate governance practices which are
reproduced from the code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules.

During the period from 8 April 2016 (the “Listing Date”) and up to 31
March 2017, the Company has complied with the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules (“CG Code”), save and except for the deviation from
code provision A.2.1.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The roles of chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company are both performed by Mr. Lau
Pong Sing. The Board believes that vesting of the roles of both
chairman and chief executive officer in the same individual provides
the Company with strong and consistent leadership, efficient usage of
resources and allows for effective planning, formulation and
implementation of the Company’s business strategies which will
enable the Company to sustain the development of its business
efficiently.

EEEMAREARFEHE2017F3A31H 1k
FEMNTEEAMS -

ARBRPACEEAELEEFENEEN - &
RARBNERRKFNEEERRE - A8
BERMERERRFHALAEEREEHHRE
RRRALELR -

R2016%F » ARARERBEKBEHE QR (R
EBREREENEE  ABERARXRN EWA
BHEREANERARAEIIMBERAAES
EFRAN( ERRR D HRE - REEFE - &K
RAFESRERNERREELEERTR -
AN ARARERPECEERER  ZEEE
SAWRTIVIE LR RIS 14 FRER B EEIRT
AR EE R ER) T RIEE -

B2016F4A8A([ LM AH]) & K EE2017
F3A31AIEERE - AREIEEST LR B 8%
14FEMBEERTA([REERTAMTA
B - MEIRBESTRNE S A2 IR ZIRERR D

EEERTHNTABXEA2IGRE - L7
R AT R AR A B AL e D B S W0 3E R Al — A 42
F o RRAERERITREZN AEHIHBIFRE
ERIE - EFEMGE AR ALTREEFRIT
RERN AR REREFMBEARALNR - ALEF
BEERER - WARFA R & HI5T REITER
NEIMEBER - AR BREBEERE TR
E

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\_LI_/‘r/-\— N

TEBEIAWME

The Company has adopted The Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors of the Company.
The Company has made specific enquiries to all directors of the
Company regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code.

All the directors of the Company confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the period from the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2017.

The Board provides leadership and guidance to the Group’s activities
and is responsible for formulating the overall strategies and
determining the direction of future development of the Group. The
Board oversees the Group’s operation and financial performance.
The Board has delegated its powers to the management for the
Group’s daily management and operations.

Currently, the Board comprises two executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.
Since there are three independent non-executive Directors and at
least one of the independent non-executive Directors possesses the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise, the Company has complied with the
requirements under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the
Company has complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The
number of independent non-executive Directors represents more
than one-third of the Board. As such, there exists a strong
independent element in the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement. The Board comprises the following
Directors:

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

AR E BN ETT R BIMT SR 10 P8 E AT A
ERETES R HHRESTR ([1RE #E'JJH%?%
RATRESETEFRZHTRHTR - AR
HETERFETRIAAR T%%%%%VE&HL
By o

ARRZRBEFIHR  WEABLTRMERE

£2017F3 A3 B LA ETEZEESTAIAR
ATHIIRERLE -

EECHEASEEKNEERES  TAEH
F‘ﬂ%&m

REENEEAEEARRERNTM - EF
EEEARENZERYBRE EFERTE
EEREASEAREEREEEEMNES -

EEXeBRmMBNTES  —BFATEER
“ERBUFRTESEK - ARKBE=RBIIF
WITEEREL 2B IIFNTEZEBREN
HESHERLMUBEREEMR  MARAE
A ETRANEIAOHHRTE © boh - ARTFLD
A ETRANEII0AGIMRTE - BUIFRITE
ENBELEEE =D UL Bt - EFg
AEREBYMN  EARELBYHE - E=2/
AN E S



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

;LI/_/r/-\—\\ =
TEERRS

Mr. Lau Pong Sing (285X ) (Chairman; Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (B'2#§) (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Lu Tao (&%)

Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond ({i4&%z)
Mr. Siu Chak Yu (BB/2F)
Mr. Li Ping Chi (/)

The Chairman and executive Director, Mr. Lau Pong Sing is the
spouse of Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina, an executive Director. The
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Pong Sing and Ms. Chan Kit Mui,
Lina, are interested in the shares of the Company through their
interest in New Club House International Holdings Limited (“New
Club House”) and Great Club House Holdings Limited (“Great Club
House”) respectively (for details, please refer to the Prospectus).
Instances of actual or potential conflict have been identified and
minimised. Please refer to the “Directors and Senior Management”,
“Directors’ Report — Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” and “Directors’ Report
— Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 65 to 78, pages 40
to 41 and pages 44 to 46 in this annual report respectively for more
details. Save as disclosed above, the Directors have no other
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
one another as at the date of this annual report.

Non-executive Director and Independent
non-executive Directors

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, the
non-executive Director and the independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have shared their valuable experiences to the Board
for promoting the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The non-executive Director and all of the independent non-executive
Directors are appointed under an initial term of three years and are
also subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”).
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Directors, a written confirmation of his independence to the Company
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be independent
in accordance with the relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Each newly appointed Director was provided with the necessary
induction, training and information to ensure that he/she has proper
understanding of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
the applicable laws, rules and regulations prior to his/her
appointment. The Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development courses and seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company will
continue to arrange and fund suitable training and regular seminars to
provide Directors with updates on the latest developments and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, each of the Directors has
attended training in connection with their responsibilities as a director
of the Company save for Mr. Kitagawa Ken, and the attendance of
each Directors is set out in the table below:
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ERAEE  REFRHEMLETRARE M
BERLEERETENERNERLEHNKHN
Bl o

HZE2017F3A31 HILFE » BB EIN -
EEECHFEANSIEAR R ZESTEAER
EME - SESHELRSHN TR

Name of Director Attendance

EENA HE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITESE

Mr. Lau Pong Sing (2I38A%) 21FA kA v/
(Chairman; Chief Executive Officer) (FE 7T AEE)

Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (BR;21g) fRZ2M 2t v/
(Chief Operating Officer) (EEHE)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FHITES

Mr. Kitagawa Ken (1t)1162) el seE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BAFHITES

Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond ({a]$&%g) fAlsERIE T TI2AM v

Mr. Siu Chak Yu (FE25) BEFRE 4

Mr. Li Ping Chi (Z/A5) TRELE v/
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company on 17 March 2016 for an initial term of three years
commencing from 8 April 2016, and may be terminated pursuant to
the respective terms of the service agreements. Mr. Kitagawa Ken
ceased to be a non-executive Director of the Company on 20 June
2017. Mr. Lu Tao, a non-executive Director entered into a letter of
appointment dated 20 June 2017 with the Company for an initial term
of three years, and may be terminated pursuant to the terms of the
letter of appointment. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment on 17 March 2016
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
8 April 2016, and may be terminated pursuant to the respective terms
of the letters of appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of the Directors are governed by the Articles. Article 83(3) of the
Articles provides that any director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles, at each AGM, one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to, but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at AGM at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to retire
by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number
of directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and
not to offer himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire
shall be those of the other Directors subject to retirement by rotation
who have been longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment and so that as between persons who became or were
last re- elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.
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At the last annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) held on
Monday, 22 August 2016, Lau Pong Sing, Chan Kit Mui, Lina,
Kitagawa Ken, Ho Chung Tai, Raymond, Siu Chak Yu and Li Ping Chi
have retired and they have been re-elected as Directors of the
Company.

Lau Pong Sing and Chan Kit Mui, Lina will retire from office as
Director and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company in accordance with Article 84 of
the Articles. Mr. Lu Tao will only hold office until the forthcoming AGM
of the Company and will be subject to re-election at such meeting in
accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles.

Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.1.1, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times a
year. The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategies as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. Directors may participate in Board meetings either in person
or through electronic means of communications.

If a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by
the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and he/
she shall not be counted as a quorum in the Board meeting
discussing the matter concerned.
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From the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2017, 10 Board meetings
were held and 1 general meeting of the Company was held. Set out
below are details of the attendance record of each Director at the
Board meetings, committee meetings and general meeting held
during the period from the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2017:

Board
Name of Director Meeting
Bz
BEHR =F
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES
Mr. Lau Pong Sing (£1B5k) (Chairman) BIFREE(FE) 1010
Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (B2 215) B2t 1010
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FHITES
Mr. Kitagawa Ken (3511 ) LA 6/10
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BV F#{TES
Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond ({a/4%) AERELIREM 1010
Mr. Siu Chak Yu (F25) FETEE 1010
Mr. Li Ping Chi (/A7) TRELE 10/10

An AGM is an important forum in which the management of the
Company can communicate with the shareholders. The last AGM
was held on 22 August 2016 and the upcoming AGM will be held on
25 August 2017 (“2017 AGM”).

BEEMAHEBEREZ2017F3A3IHILE S
CERITIONGERADAERIT—NBREKR
g TXEHISEFLHFEE LMAHERER
2017 F3 AT ALLHMMBRTEEESH £
B REASHREFS -

Meetings attended/Held
HE/BER
Audit Nomination  Remuneration General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting of
Meeting Meeting Meeting  the Company
B R% HH N

ZEgER ZEEEE ZEEEH LEN-1

N/A i 11 11 1/1
N/A iR N/A i N/A N 11
NATEH N/A T B N/ATER 11
6/6 N/A B N/A N 11
6/6 11 11 11
6/6 11 11 1

RERBAFAGRAEENAREEEHEBRIEBN
F2FE FERFEFRNGN20165F8 722
BET MEBRFEAF A HR201748 A
25 AT (2017 ERFBERE]) -
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The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. The Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to shareholders on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board Committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Audit Committee was established on 17 March 2016, with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.22 of the
Listing Rules and paragraph C3 of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee comprises three members, all being independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond, Mr. Siu
Chak Yu and Mr. Li Ping Chi (Chairman).

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include, among
others, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and removal of the external auditor, reviewing the financial statements
and material advice in respect of financial reporting and overseeing
the internal control procedures of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in that
the Audit Committee must comprise a minimum three members and
must be chaired by an independent non-executive Director who
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required in Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules.

From the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2017, 6 meetings of the
Audit Committee were held to make recommendations to the Board
as follows: (i) on the re-appointment of auditor and to approve the
engagement letter of the auditor; (i) advise the Board to engage the
Consultant to provide advisory services about risk assessment
internal control and corporate governance. The Audit Committee also
reviewed report on continuing connected transactions every six
months.

On 27 June 2017, another meeting was held to review the
Company’s continuing connected transactions and internal control
matters, and the Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2017. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 complied
with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules.
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The Audit Committee oversees the corporate governance functions of
the Company. The responsibilities of the Audit Committee in relation
to corporate governance functions are set out in the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee. Upon the listing of the Company,
the Audit Committee appointed an international consulting firm to
perform a CG Code compliance review. The review covers the
Company’s terms of reference of board committees, corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the senior
management and disclosures in this Corporate Governance Report.
The Consultant has provided certain recommendations on improving
the Company’s corporate governance practices, which the Company
will adopt accordingly to ensure sound corporate governance
practices.

The Nomination Committee was established on 17 March 2016, with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A5
of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee comprises three
members, being one executive Director, namely, Mr. Lau Pong Sing
(Chairman), and two independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Siu Chak Yu and Mr. Li Ping Chi. Accordingly, a majority of the
members are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

From the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2017, 1 meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held to review the terms and conditions
of the office of the Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee was established on 17 March 2016,
with specific written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.26
of the Listing Rules and paragraph B1 of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three members, being one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Lau Pong Sing, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Siu Chak Yu (Chairman) and Mr.
Li Ping Chi. Accordingly, a majority of the members are independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include,
among others, (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a set of formal and
transparent procedures for developing policies on such remuneration;
(ii) reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and members of senior
management.

From the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2017, 1 meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held to review the remuneration
package of the individual executive Directors and senior management
and to make recommendations to the Board on such remuneration
packages.
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Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the senior management of the Company then
in office by band for the year ended 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Number of individuals

Remuneration band

M 4B B

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to 3,000,000

Total

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
March 2017 are set out in note to the consolidated financial

statements.

A Risk Management Committee under the management of the
Company has been established. The Risk Management Committee
comprises three members, being two executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Lau Pong Sing and Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina, and one senior staff
member of the Company, namely Mr. Wong Cheuk Man. The primary
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee are to deliberate
risk management related policies and procedures, review the
effectiveness of risk management activities and handle issues of

emergency.

From the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2017, two meetings were
held to review the internal controls of the Group.

= 2= 1,000,000 7T
2,500,001 78 7T & 3,000,000 78 7T 2
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The Board adopts a board diversity policy. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of its performance. Diversity of Board members can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in
addition to educational background, professional qualifications,
industry and regional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All the Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Mr. Lau Pong Sing, Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina, New Club House and
Great Club House (collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”),
have entered into a deed of non-competition dated 18 March 2017
(“Deed of Non-competition”) with the Company, pursuant to which
the Controlling Shareholders of the Company have irrevocably
undertaken to the Company that he/she/it would not, and would
procure that his/her/its close associates (except any members of the
Group) would not, during the restricted period, directly or indirectly,
either on his/her/its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person, firm or company, among other things, carry on,
participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each
case whether as shareholder, director, partner, agent, employee or
otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any business
which is or may be in competition with the business currently carried
on or contemplated to be carried on by any member of the Group
(save and except for certain residual contracts of which shall be
terminated upon their respective expiry dates (the details of which are
set out in the Prospectus)). Details of the Deed of Non-competition
are set out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided confirmation in
respect of compliance with his/her/its undertaking under the Deed of
Non-competition.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance by each of the Controlling Shareholders of the terms of
the Deed of Non-competition, and were satisfied that each of the
Controlling Shareholders has complied with his/her/its undertaking
under the Deed of Non-competition during the period from the Listing
Date and up to 27 June 2017.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017, the remunerations paid or
payable to the external auditors in respect of its audit services and
non-audit services provided to the Group were approximately
HK$1.52 million and HK$0.6 million, respectively. The non-audit
services consist of taxation, internal control advice and other services.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2017. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 99 to 105.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which
consists of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the Risk
Management Committee. The Board of Directors determines the
nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring
the design, implementation and the overall effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management Policy in
providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks. At least on an annual basis, the Risk Management Committee
identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the
Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks
according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established and assigned for those risks considered
to be significant.

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The internal
controls are designed to meet the Group’s particular needs and to
minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed, and are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risks to achieve business
objectives of the Group, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against misstatements or losses.
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The Company does not have an internal audit function. In 2016, the
Company engaged the Consultant to review the effectiveness of
certain of the Group’s risk management and internal controls
systems. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal
controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors on a timely basis to
ensure prompt remedial actions are taken. Results of risk
management and internal controls review are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors at least once a year. During
the year under review, the Company improved its corporate
governance practices continuously with reference to the Consultant’s
recommendations.

As a result of the above review, the Board confirms that the Group’s
risk management internal control systems are adequate and effective
and have complied with the CG Code provisions on internal control
throughout the year and up to the date of this annual report.

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside
information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbours as provided in the
SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group
is committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact. The Group is committed to
ensure that information contained in announcements is presented in
a clear and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.
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The role of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) is performed by Mr. Wong Cheuk Man. The Company
Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board’s processes and
communications among Board members, shareholders and the
management of the Company. The Company Secretary undertakes
at least 15 hours of relevant professional training annually to update
his skills and knowledge.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An AGM
of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may
be determined by the Board.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders of
the Company holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary at the head office of the Company in Hong
Kong, which is presently situated at Unit 15, 19th Floor, Concordia
Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in
Hong Kong.

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 58 of the Articles for
putting forward a resolution at an EGM. The requirements and
procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed “Shareholders
to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

The Company has adopted, on 17 March 2016, the amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association of the Company
which took effect from 8 April 2016. There was no change in the
constitutional documents of the Company during the period from the
Listing Date and up to 31 March 2017.

By order of the Board
Lau Pong Sing

Chairman and Executive Director
27 June 2017
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The table below contains certain information about our Directors and ~ T&REINETEBREERSREEBHER -

senior management.

Date of
appointment
Date of joining to the current Responsibilities
Name Age Position the Group position in the Group
EZER AR
®E FiR B MAXEENRAE HEH REKENRE
Mr. Lau Pong Sing 60 Executive Director; 22 December 2004 11 June 2015 Our overall management
(ZIFBBX) Chairman; Chief and business development;
executive officer setting business strategies,
direction and goals
Yt 60 WTES EF 2004412 A22H 201556 A11H AN BREERREBER
TTHRE HEXBHER  FARER
Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina 59 Executive Director; 22 December 2004 11 June 2015 Overseeing our
(BR218) Chief operating administration, financial
officer control and human
resources
RRgL 59 HTEE 288 2004F 12 A 22 H 20156 A11H EERMOTE - MBEHR
ANER
Mr. Kitagawa Ken 61 Non-executive 10 December 2015 10 December 2015 Supervising the management
(3E)14) Director (ceased to be of the Company
a director on
20 June 2017)
1) EE 61 FHTESE 201512 A10H 201512 A10H EEARANER
(Fr2017%6 A 20 R
BIEHAEER)
Mr. Lu Tao (2/8) 55 Non-executive 20 June 2017 20 June 2017 Supervising the management
Director of the Company
BRELE 55 FHTESE 20176 A20H 20176 A20H EERDNRNER
Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, 78 Independent 17 March 2016 17 March 2016 Supervising the management
Raymond ({a#%%8) Non-executive of the Company
Director
(IR TG T T12R 78 BUFNTES 20163 A17H 20163 A17H EEADAMNER

AP Rentals Holdings Limited
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Name

®E

Mr. Siu Chak Yu 56
(FRETF)

BEFEE 56

Mr. Li Ping Chi 57
(BRE)

FRERE 57

Mr. Shinji Mitsuya 63
(=ZXRED)

=RfEZEAE 63

Mr. Lau Tsz Fung 31
(BlF8)

BFerksE 31

Mr. Wong Cheuk Man 51
(F=E8)

FTEHELE 51
Mr. Lee Lut Kei 38
()

TEOEE 38

Ms. Tam Chung Oi, Venus 49
(BIFE)
BHERL 49

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Age

FiR

Position

Bt

Independent
Non-executive
Director

BUENTES

Independent
Non-executive

Director

BUFRTES

Director of
AP Singapore

AP Singapore 2%

Vice president —
sales and marketing
BB (HE R EH)

Financial controller

e

Sales and marketing
manager
HE R HERE

Purchasing manager

RpgE

Annual Report 2017

Date of joining
the Group

MAZREEH A

17 March 2016

201653 A 17 H

17 March 2016

20163 A17H

3 March 2017

201753 A3H

1 April 2009

20094 A1 H

1 January 2010

20101 A1 H

13 March 2014

2014F3 A13H

1 January 2015

20151 A1H

Date of
appointment
to the current
position
EZER AR
9 B 58

17 March 2016

201653 A17H

17 March 2016

20163 A17H

3 March 2017

2017463 A3H

1 April 2014

20145F4 A1 H

1 January 2010

20101 A1 H

13 March 2014

2014E3 413 A

1 January 2015

20151 A1H

Responsibilities
in the Group

RAKBNEE

Supervising the management
of the Company

Supervising the management
of the Company

EEAARNER

Oversee the operations
business in AP Singapore,
a subsidiary of the
Company in Singapore

EERRRIRIINEA
BB 72 7] AP Singapore
HEB2E

Overseeing our sales and
marketing affairs
EERMOHE R EHER
Overseeing our financial
management and company
secretarial matters
EERMOABERER
RAWESH

Sales and marketing affairs
HENEHED

Inventory control; purchasing
and shipping affairs
FEEH REREESH
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Date of joining

Name Age Position the Group

®E iR B MAKEE A

Mr. Yeung Oi Fan 67 Technical manager 26 March 2012
(15ELR)

BN L e 67 Beligag 201253 A 26

Mr. Ho Chi Fai, Kenneth 55 Workshop Manager 3 January 2017
(fI58)

EBEE 55 BRKE 2017F1A3H

Mr. Wong Yue Lam Leo 44 Chief Accountant 15 June 2016
(EAR)

BEAREAE 44 BRI 201646 A 15H

Mr. Lee Chi Hang 40 Accountant 1 January 2015
(FEE)

FEERE 40 BEHED 20151 A1H

Notes:

(1) Mr. Lau Tsz Fung (“Mr. TF Lau”) is the son of Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan.

2 Mr. Kitagawa ceased to be the non-executive Director of the Company
on 20 June 2017.

) Mr. Lu Tao is an employee of Kanamoto HK and Kanamoto Japan, and
is appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company on 20 June
2017.

The business address of our Directors and senior management is Unit
15, 19/F, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Date of

appointment

to the current Responsibilities

position in the Group

EZEE AR

i B 58 REKENRE

1 April 2015 Overseeing machinery
service, maintenance and
parts; training and
management of service
team

2015F4 A1 H EERRRY RERTH
RIS E RS R E R

3 January 2017 Group’s overall workshop
management

201741 A3H AEEERERER

15 June 2016 Group’s accounting, financial

20166 4151

1 January 2015

reporting and system
implementation

AEEET  MBRER
ZRE

Accounting and financial

reporting
20151 A1H Bt RIS
3T -

(1) BFEEERFEERRZLINEF -
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The Board currently consists of six Directors, comprising two
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. The following table sets forth
information regarding our Directors. The functions and duties of the
Board include convening shareholders’ meetings, reporting on the
Board’s work at these meetings, implementing the resolutions passed
at these meetings, determining business and investment plans,
formulating our annual budget and final accounts, and formulating our
proposals for profit distributions and for the increase or reduction of
registered capital. In addition, the Board is responsible for exercising
other powers, functions and duties in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.
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Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Pong Sing 238,

Executive Director, chairman and chief executive officer

Mr. Lau, aged 60, was appointed as our executive Director and
Chairman of the Board on 11 June 2015 and concurrently serves as
our chief executive officer. Mr. Lau is primarily responsible for the
Group’s overall management and business development, as well
setting our business strategies, direction and goals. Mr. Lau is also a
member of our Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
Mr. Lau is the chairman of our Nomination Committee.

Prior to joining the Group in 2004 as one of the founders, Mr. Lau had
accumulated over 20 years of experience in the construction
equipment industry through his directorship in and management of
Ajax Pong Construction Equipment Limited from September 1983 to
March 1992 and Ajax Pong (Holdings) Limited from April 1992 to
December 2014. Mr. Lau had in the past managed or oversight
various aspects of the Group, including business development and
strategies, financial management and management of training to be
given to our employees. Under the leadership of Mr. Lau and Ms.
Chan, the Group has entered into strategic partnership agreements
with reputable construction equipment suppliers, and participated in
a number of landmark construction projects.

Mr. Lau is the spouse of Ms. Chan and father of Mr. TF Lau.

Ms. CHAN Kit Mui, Lina BRZ#§

Executive Director and chief operating officer

Ms. Chan, aged 59, has been our executive Director since 11 June
2015 and also serves as our chief operating officer. She is in charge
of the Group’s administration, financial control and human resources.

Prior to joining the Group in 2004 as one of the founders, Ms. Chan
has acquired over 20 years of experience in the construction
equipment industry. She was principally responsible for corporate
reorganisation, business management control, as well as setting up
corporate administration systems and finance systems, during her
positions as deputy managing director of Ajax Pong Construction
Equipment Limited from April 1989 to March 1992, and deputy
managing director of Ajax Pong (Holdings) Limited from April 1992 to
December 2014.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Since joining the Group, she has worked closely with Mr. Lau to
expand the Group’s business in Hong Kong and Macau and assisted
in the set up of our current operation system and staff welfare scheme.

Ms. Chan obtained a Secretarial Diploma from the Chinese Young Men’s
Christian Association of Hong Kong in May 1978 and an Intermediate
Stage Certificate in Book-keeping from the London Chamber of
Commerce and Industry in Spring 1978. She also completed the
Computerized Accounting System for Commerce and Industry Training
Course given by the Hong Kong Productivity Council in October 1986.

Ms. Chan is the spouse of Mr. Lau and mother of Mr. TF Lau.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Kitagawa Ken 1t )I|

(ceased as a Non-executive Director on 20 June 2017)

Mr. Kitagawa, aged 61, was a non-executive Director of the Company
and was responsible for supervising the overall management of the
Group.

Mr. Kitagawa serves as the director and chief operating officer of
Kanamoto HK, the single largest supplier of the Group. Since joining
Kanamoto HK in July 2009, Mr. Kitagawa has been responsible for
overseeing its management and business operations. His duties and
roles include formulating the company’s business plans and strategies
in Hong Kong, ensuring proper distribution of the company’s
resources, as well as liaising with both overseas and local customers.
He also monitors the Company’s financial control and performance.

Prior to joining Kanamoto HK, he had gained over 28 years of
experience in the banking and finance industry. He served various
positions in the Hokkaido Takushoku Bank from April 1980 to March
1998, where he was responsible for a variety of duties including
economic research, loan judgement and general affairs. He was a
controller with THK America Inc. and later a manager of corporate
compliance in legal department with THK Co., Ltd from April 1998 to
March 2007. He later joined CEL Group Holdings Inc. in May 2007
and held the position as managing director of Operation between
September 2007 and March 2008 before becoming a regional
manager of Aeon Bank for the Hokkaido area.

Mr. Kitagawa obtained his chartered member of The Securities
Analysts Association of Japan in September 1996. He obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Commerce from Waseda University in March
1980.
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Non-executive Director (Continued)

Mr. Lu Tao 2%

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lu Tao (@7&), aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 20 June 2017. He has extensive experience in
management level in multinational engineering companies. He serves
as the chief operating officer of Kanamoto HK which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Kanamoto Japan since April 2017. Prior to
joining Kanamoto HK, Mr. Lu has been working in Komatsu Limited
as manager from April 1992 to March 2002 (responsible for overseas
global business in China), Komatsu America Corporation as manager
from October 2005 to December 2010 (responsible for overseas
business in mining equipment), SANY Heavy Machinery Company
Limited as general manager from January 2011 to January 2012
(responsible for overseas business for excavators), Lonking Holdings
Limited as general manager from January 2012 to March 2013
(responsible for overseas business in construction machinery
equipment), LiuGong Machinery Co., Limited as general manager
from July 2013 to July 2014 (responsible for overseas and domestic
business in mining equipment), Sunward Intelligent Equipment
Company Limited as general manager from March 2015 to March
2016 (responsible for overseeing domestic business in mining
equipment in China) and Kanamoto Japan as the general manager of
business coordination headquarters from March 2016 till present
(responsible for overseeing the global business for construction
equipment rental). He obtained his Master degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Kyoto University and Bachelor degree in South
China University of Technology (formerly known as South China
Institute of Technology).
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond fi/{& 3

Independent non-executive Director

Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond, SBS, MBE, S.B. St. J., JP, aged 78,
was appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 17
March 2016. He is a member of our Audit Committee.

Dr. Ho has over 50 years of experience in civil, structural,
environmental and geotechnical engineering industries and has
directly managed a number of mega-sized engineering projects.

Dr. Ho received his degree of doctor of philosophy in Civil Engineering
from the City University of London in June 1971, an Honorary Doctor
of Laws from the University of Manchester in September 2001 and an
Honorary degree of Doctor of Business Administration from the City
University of Hong Kong in November 1999. He graduated from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1963 with a Bachelor of
Science in Engineering and obtained his diploma for advanced
studies in engineering, soil mechanics from the University of
Manchester in July 1964.

As at the date of the annual report, Dr. Ho served or is currently
serving as director of the following listed public companies in Hong

Kong:
Period Office
B B 7

Since December 2013 Independent non-executive director

H2013F 12 A1t BIFMITES
Since September 2007  Independent non-executive director
H 2007 9 At BIFMITES
Since June 2005 Independent non-executive director
H 20054 6 A it BIFMITES

Since September 1993  Independent non-executive director

B 199349 A #E BYUIEHITES
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Listed public company on the Stock Exchange
BRFr LT ARAR

ChinLink International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 997)

LiEP S REBERER AT (RN : 997)

GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3800)

RA B EREIRIZERR B R A 7 (AR5 55 - 3800)

China State Construction International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3311)

PEIEEREEEER AT (RO : 3311)

Deson Development International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 262)
HMEERBEEEEBR AT (RGORE : 262)
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Other current appointments and offices of Dr. Ho are further set out
below:

Current appointments and offices e
B Rl an R

e ERERGERBHMNER

BIEHITESE @)
{18+ B AT R0 RS E — S8IImT -

Chairman of the Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Plant and Ling Ao Nuclear
Plant Safety Consultative Committee (since February 2005)
ZBIMZLEHAEE SR (H2005F2 AfE)

° Professional advisor to the Office of the Ombudsman of Hong Kong (for the
periods 1 July 1995 to 31 March 2013 and 1 October 2015 to present)

. HEEHFHZER
1081B8&%

Mr. SIU Chak Yu #Z2F

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Siu, BBS, JP, aged 56, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 17 March 2016. He is a member of our
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Siu is the chairman of our Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Siu has gained experience in legal practice in Hong Kong. He
obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree and a Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws from the University of Hong Kong in November 1983 and July
1984, respectively. He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in
September 1986, England and Wales in June 1990, Australian Capital
Territory in February 1991, and in Singapore in September 1992; and
as a barrister in Australia in February 1991. Mr. Siu was appointed as
a Notary Public in April 1997, a China-Appointed Attesting Officer in
January 2000, and currently a partner of Hastings & Co.

Mr. Siu is currently the chairman of the Environmental Impact
Assessment Appeal Board, deputy chairman of the HKSAR Passports
Appeal Board and a board member of the Estates Agents Authority.

Mr. LI Ping Chi =&

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Li, aged 57, was appointed as our independent non-executive
Director on 17 March 2016. He is a member of our Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Li is the
chairman of our Audit Committee.

NEHEREM(1995F7 A1 HE20134F3 A 31 HHIM & 20154

BEFRE

BUHBMITEE

BEE  EFEE - KT4L - 565% - 12016
FIR17TABZERBLIRITESE - A
ZEE BFERLEGRIEREZEGRE - WAL
BHWEESESE -

BAEABEETBLEENNELS - RN 19835
1MARIBAFT AL BERBERNBEE L2E
TEMREBHEEFE - FN1986F9 A+ 1990
F6H 199152 AR1992F9ANBIERE -
TS BB R T RN S A [ R N R
AR - W 1991 G2 AR AR A AR ERD o &R
FEMA1997 4 A R 2000F1 B A B EZ T A

B ABARPRAEZEREA  BAFBHEREM
TTEBA -

BEERAREZETG LFZEGERE  BH
BT RER FREE SRR Mt ERIEE

EREERKE -

TRERFKE

BUHBMITEE

ThEB7H R2016F3A17THEZ T AB
VIIRTEF - BRABEZRZES FTHEEGR
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. Li has over 30 years of experience in accounting and auditing. He
was an assistant assessor for the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department from August 1982 to February 1985. He joined Touche
Ross Hong Kong in March 1985 and was promoted to the position of
audit manager in August 1989. He later joined Deloitte China in April
1990 as a result of its merger with Touche Ross Hong Kong and had
been a partner from June 1996 to May 2013.

Mr. Li received a higher diploma in accountancy with distinction from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1982. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Our senior management members are responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business. None of the members of
our senior management has been a director of a public company the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas.

Mr. Mitsuya Shinji = &5 =

Director of AP Singapore

Mr. Mitsuya, aged 63, has been the consultant of a subsidiary of the
Company, AP Rentals Limited, since 1st of January, 2017. In the
wake of establishment of a new company under the Group in
Singapore, AP Singapore, he was appointed and assigned as
Director of AP Singapore on 3 March 2017.

Mr. Mitsuya’s main roles are to launch an equipment rental business
in Singapore capitalizing the Group’s experience and know-how as a
solution provider, to develop a new market in the South Pacific Ocean
and to establish a closer relationship and communications with
Japanese partners based on long term strategy.

Prior to joining the Group, he has been in Europe from 2007 to 2012,
three years in Lyon, France and three years in Utrecht, Holland as a
general manager of local company of Furukawa Unic Corporation,
establishing new sales channels in EU countries.
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He has been engaged in overseas marketing since early 1980th at
Hokuetsu Industries Co., Ltd., known as Airman air-compressor until
2016.

Having been working for a long time for Japanese construction
machinery manufacturers, he expanded sales opportunities through
new dealers including commencement of local production in the
global market. He obtained Bachelor’'s degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Kanto Gakuin University in March 1977.

Mr. LAU Tsz Fung (2| ), aged 31, is our vice president and oversees
the sales and marketing department of the Company. He is principally
responsible for encouraging sustainable development through the
delivery of updated market analysis and information, and works
closely with the sales team in attracting potential customers and
contracts. His roles and duties include maintaining a high volume of
rental transactions and good relationships with worldwide
manufacturers and suppliers. Mr. TF Lau has completed training
sessions on construction equipment given by Donaldson Company,
Inc., Nippon Sharyo, Ltd., Furukawa UNIC Corporation and Denyo
Co., Ltd..

Mr. TF Lau received his Bachelor’s degree in Business Economics
from the University of California Santa Barbara in September 2008.
Prior to joining the Group as a sales and marketing officer in April
2009, he was a marketing officer assistant at Ajax Pong (Holdings)
Limited from April 2008 to June 2008, where he was responsible for
managing relationship with potential customers and overseas buyers.

Mr. TF Lau is the son of Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan.

Mr. WONG Cheuk Man (£ £#)), aged 51, is the financial controller,
company secretary and one of the authorised representatives of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for the Group’s accounting,
internal control, financial reporting, resource management and
information technology affairs.

# B 1980 4F R 4] #E 7 Hokuetsu Industries Co.,
Ltd. (8 2016 4F #£ 7% /& Airman air-compressor) #
BIGINE SHEETE o

SRAERBABREEUWMBENTE B
BT A ERANRRKTIEHHEERK - &
FERIREE M A E - RN 1977 3 A EKanto
Gakuin University f8 & i TI2 2 247 o

B F#%E 31 RERMNEILEE  BEEAR
AIMHE REHEE - REBZBREBBEESN
MISOM REARERTFHEER - WEIHEE K
WA HEBEREPRAH - HBBBES
FenelER S AN EtH R X aERE R E
ERFREFBAER A FHEEETKA
Donaldson Company, Inc. * Nippon Sharyo,
Ltd. * Furukawa UNIC Corporation & & &K k=X £
AR AR EMIZIIZRIZ -

2 F 8% %t 4 R 20084F 9 A ¥ The University of
California Santa Barbara B & i ¥ & B2 S8+ 2
i o 2| F48 5 £ 2009 F 4 A AR E B E T 85
EREEFETR - 8 2008F 4 AZE 20085 6 A
EADER(ER)BRARMELHEET 88
EREETRP REINERNER -

BFEAEERBELERRL LR T

TEHEE 51K RARANMBLEE - Q7
WEREP-—2RERR - RIBEEEAKEN
GE - AR MBRE BREEREAM
RE -
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Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Western Sydney Nepean
with a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in September
1999 and obtained a Master’s degree in International Accounting
from the City University of Hong Kong in November 2001. Mr. Wong
has over 29 years of experience in accounting. He was an assistant
accountant at Sanyo Electric (Hong Kong) Ltd. from July 1987 to April
1990, cost accountant and later assistant finance manager of STD
Holding Ltd. from August 1990 to September 1994. He served as
accounting manager and subsequently financial controller of Ajax
Pong (Holdings) Limited from September 1994 prior to joining the
Group in January 2010.

Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Mr. LEE Lut Kei (Z£ ), aged 38, is the sales and marketing manager of
the Company. His responsibilities include formulating marketing plans
and leading the sales team in achieving sales targets of the Group.

Mr. Lee joined ATAL Engineering Ltd. In July 2001 as an engineer
trainee and was promoted to the position of engineer in January 2005
before his departure in June 2006. Prior to joining the Group in March
2014, he was a technical sales representative and later a marketing
manager for Hilti (HK) Ltd. from June 2006 to December 2013, where
his duties include customer relationship management and developing
marketing strategies. Mr. Lee has completed a number of engineering
and construction equipment related training given by the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, Denyo Co., Ltd., and Furukawa UNIC
Corporation.

Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Engineering in Electrical Energy
Systems Engineering from the University of Hong Kong in November
2001 and a Master’s degree in Electrical Engineering from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in December 2006.

Ms. TAM Chung Oi Venus (:E{h %), aged 49, is the purchasing manager
of the Company. She is primarily responsible for the Group’s
purchasing and shipping affairs, inventory control and works with the
sales team in determining prices and discounts.
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Prior to joining the Group in January 2015, Ms. Tam was an assistant
purchasing manager and later a business manager at Ajax Pong
(Holdings) Limited from June 1998 to December 2014.

Ms. Tam completed the Certificate Programme on Company
Secretarial Practice — Public and Listed Companies in June 1997
and obtained a Professional Diploma in International Shipping
Management in July 2000 from The Hong Kong Management
Association. She has also completed a training course given by the
Hong Kong Productivity Council on Profitable Purchasing Strategies
from October to November 1998.

Mr. YEUNG Oi Fan (#8l11), aged 67, is the technical manager of
the Company and is principally responsible for overseeing machinery
service, maintenance and parts, as well as training and management
of our service team. He first joined the Group in March 2012 as a
workshop manager.

Mr. Yeung has over 14 years of experience in mechanical engineering.
He joined Ajax Pong (Holdings) Limited as an assistant plant manager
from August 1991 to July 1997, and later a technical manager from
August 1997 to March 2000 and a workshop manager from April
2000 to September 2001.

Mr. Yeung has completed the Safety & Health Supervisor Training
Course (Construction Industry) given by The Hong Kong Safety
Training Association in April 2015. He is also certified by a number of
corporations such as Denyo Co., Ltd, Furukawa UNIC Corporation
and Hyundai Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. to operate a variety of
construction equipment.

Mr. HO Chi Fai, Kenneth ({1 &), aged 55, is the Workshop Manager
of the Company. He joined the Group in January 2017 and is responsible
for overseeing and assuring efficient and on time delivery of quality
maintenance services in the way of effectively monitoring maintenance
work processes and sustaining fit-to-purpose improvements under
regulatory requirements.

Mr. Ho has over 17 years of experience in facility/plant maintenance
and leading a large team of Electrical & Mechanical practitioners. On
top of this aspect, he has gained much experience in capital budget
and cost/expenditure control on repair & maintenance together with
system assurance of quality and environment protection. He has
been qualified as ISO9001/1ISO14001 Auditor since 2011.

R2015F 1 AMAREER - 2T B 1998 F 6
RE2014F 12 AL BEATEA(EB)ARA
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Mr. WONG Yue Lam Leo, (E% %), aged 44, is the Chief Accountant
of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the Group’s
accounting, financial reporting and system implementation.

Mr. Wong graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’s degree in Accounting in 1994. Mr. Wong has over 19
years of experience in accounting and auditing. Before joining the
Company in June 2016, he was an Assistant Finance Manager in
Cathay Pacific Catering Services (HK) Limited.

Mr. Wong currently is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. LEE Chi Hang (Z=718), aged 40, is an accountant of the Company
and is responsible for monitoring the Group’s receivables, payables,
sales and aging.

Mr. Lee has around 18 years of experience in accounting. Prior to
joining the Group in January 2015, he was an accounts clerk at Hui
Lau Shan Food Manufacturing Company Limited and Chesterton
Petty Limited from July 1998 to June 2000 and from June 2000 to
March 2004, respectively. He was a finance and administrative officer
and later promoted to assistant finance and administration manager
at Kajun Candy Manufactory Limited from April 2004 to December
2007, and an accounting officer and later an accountant at Ajax Pong
(Holdings) Limited from January 2008 to December 2014.

Through a distant learning course, Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of
Science in Applied Accounting from Oxford Brookes University. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Accredited Accounting
Technicians.

Each of our senior management did not hold any other directorship in
listed public companies in the three years prior to the date of this
annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Varas

RiE - @ NERMmE
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BEZ - —+F=A=+—HIFE

In accordance with Appendix 27 — Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) of the Main
Board Listing Rules published by the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, AP Rentals Holdings Limited (the “Company”), and
“We”, “Our” and “Us”),
present this Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) for the year ended 31 March 2017 (the “Reporting Period”).

its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”,

This ESG Report covers the Group’s principal businesses of
construction equipment rental and trading services in Hong Kong,
which are the key area of focus for our ESG management, and was
prepared in accordance with the “Comply or Explain” Provisions of
the ESG Guide.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the Company’s ESG
strategy and reporting. Our management is responsible for monitoring
and managing the Company’s ESG-related risks and the
effectiveness of the ESG management systems. We aims at achieving
sustainable development for the environment, the industry and our
businesses through execution of green practices in our business
activities. Details of our ESG strategies, policies and measures in
different aspects are stipulated in the below sessions.

RIBEEBZ G REEMBRARBMHER LT
AR s =+ CGR% - (£ g REIR([ESG)) 3k
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In order to ensure that the Report addresses our stakeholders’
concerns, we have engaged our internal stakeholders in identifying
the ESG issues that are relevant and material to the Company and

included such issues in this ESG Report:

ESG aspects as set out in ESG Guide
ESGIES| iR ESGEE

A.
A.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Environmental
:-$:

A1 Emissions
A1 BKY

As a leading construction machinery rental service
provider, we take part in building the future of Hong
Kong. Sustainability, being a critical element to the
prosperity of Hong Kong in the long run, has been
the key value of our business and we are committed
to conducting all of the business activities in a
manner that both protects the environment and
contributes to sustainability.
ERBEMNBEERMEARBHES  RMRERE
BARRE—97 - REME @ AISERREREERN
BRER R EEZAEBNEZEE  TB MU
FERB R EET REERN A NETHEERES -
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—EFZASt—BLFE

RERAREEMESANBIES R
RS ABREARB BB LERNESGH
7 WK BREHEEMNATESGRE ¢

Material ESG issues for the Company
RATEEESGHE

Air Emissions

BER L

Air emissions, including nitrogen oxides (“NOx”), sulphur
oxides (“SOx”) and particular matter (“PM”), which have
negative impacts on both human health and
environment, are generated mainly from combustion of
fossil fuels by construction machinery and vehicles. In
our operations, the majority of air emissions are
generated by our rental customers who rented our
machines for use at construction sites. Thus, such air
emissions are not controllable by the Group. The Group
itself only generates limited direct air emissions during
machinery repair and maintenance, testing and
transportation processes. Despite the fact that we have
no control over lessees’ use of our machinery, all of our
rental equipment have proper maintenance to ensure
operating efficiency, and we also monitor closely the
latest technology in construction machinery which
could help reduce emissions.
BEREER(BEEARE(NOx])) - HEW ([SOx]) &
BFHTF((PM])) 2R B 2EMM RERRENLA
MK ABBERRBHENAELE - EHMET
BT BEREMAZREEARMNERIERER S
WHERR - At - REBBOXZEHIEREERYI - K&
EARGREEE  #E& ARLERRMEEEBRN
BEERYW - BERFIEEEN AR AEBRMAOE
W BRMAELERESSEIEEEEARREER
T o IR ZIRRE A BhRUBE e S FT R SR el
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ESG aspects as set out in ESG Guide
ESGiE5| FiBESG B |

Material ESG issues for the Company
AABEEESGHE

The Group implements a systematic approach to
formulating and reviewing its environmental
objectives. Environmental objectives including
minimizing emissions at source as well as recycling
wastes generated from business activities are
adopted by the Group in implementing green
operations so as to address significant environmental
issues, compliance obligations and relevant
stakeholders’ expectation. A Safety Management
Committee has been established for overseeing
operational health and safety matters, while part of its
functions include management of environmental
issues such as policy making, organising, planning,
implementing and evaluation of all environment-
related measures. Environmental targets and
indicators are defined, followed by regular reviews for
on-going monitoring and improvement in
environmental performance. We are committed to
complying with all such laws and regulations in
support of the government authorities’ environmental
protection initiatives.

REBARGCH AEIE R REBR - AEBER
MRREF  BEEERDIREY R EIBERE RS
EEREY  BEERGEEENRBERNRITHRE
BOTEERESEERERANRE - 22 EEEZES
EEKY  BEEBLSERERZEEN  AXoBEE
BEERRESAE  WRE - B R B METE
FrERGMEER - ZMERAERREERER - IE
s U BB R NEERIREN - BB ETH
BHREEERIER - UXHBANE BHORRITE -

During the Reporting Period, there were no material
non-compliance cases against environmental laws
and regulation identified.

RBEHAE BEZREEIHTEEHIREERER
EREEMR ©

In particular, the following measures have been adopted
in reducing air emissions:

BRME - BRI ERIBERIUA T

° Replacing old machines/vehicles with Euro V/VI
standard ones timely

o ERLATTE BN V/VIHIRE
W, E 9

° Purchasing more brand new machines and

EIHEAR, B R

keeping the equipment rental fleet in young age
(i.e. on average less than five years)

o FEEP Z R AS AR E AR MR (BN
FHNRRE)

° Using Ultra Low Sulphur diesel in machines/
vehicles
o WML EHIRERBIELSON

o Switching off idle plant/equipment
. B EIEE AR, R

° Conducting weekly self-monitoring of machine
exhaust (e.g. using Ringelmann Smoke Chart
method to perform visual inspection on exhaust)
to check for compliance and keeping records

e HREBHREANEMHRDINMERDSXEX
(Ringelmann Smoke Chart) IR BER) MR EZ S
BRI ARTF L

° Performing regular repair and maintenance on
machines/vehicles to ensure their operating
efficiency

o TEHREREMM EHARREERE
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ESG aspects as set out in ESG Guide

ESGIE5|I FTE ESG B H

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017

Material ESG issues for the Company
AABEEESGHE

° Complying with environmental requirements set
out by Environmental Protection Department
(“EPD”), such as Non-road Mobile Machinery
(“NRMM”) regulation and Quality Powered
Mechanical Equipment (“QPME”) standard

o HTRBREZT(BRREFDAENRRESR - flw
JEIE R B A (TNRMM ) 48 151l &2 {8 53 1 Bh 2% 1
(TQPMED) 2

° Using water spray or tarpaulin covers to alleviate
blowing dust

o (EAEKEERIKMARDHE

Meanwhile, greenhouse gases are emitted from the
operating machines due to combustion of fossil fuel,
and indirectly from consumption of electricity. The
Group performs periodic carbon audits to trace its
carbon trail and identify potential carbon reduction
opportunities correspondingly. Details of carbon
reduction are described in the “Efficient Use of
Resources” session.

R - EER R ERE AR MEERERE - 75
E—HMOHEEIRERE - NEETRHETIRE - B
PRk 2 DRI AR FE T TE B DR IR o BRERGGHIEE R
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ESG aspects as set out in ESG Guide
ESGiE5| FiBESG B |

Material ESG issues for the Company
AABEEESGHE

Waste Management
BEYEE

Wastes are generated from both workshop operations
as well as office administrative work of the Group, while
part of the workshop operation wastes are hazardous
as defined by the Waste Disposal Ordinance (“WDOQO”).
Therefore, we emphasize on proper handling of
hazardous wastes in accordance with the WDO so as
to avoid serious threat to human health and the
environment. We manage hazardous wastes from four
aspects, namely handling, storage, awareness and
disposal:

BEMRARNEENERMEERPIAZTRIE  HBHE
MEEREMIRBEEDRE G ((EDRERDD RER
B Bt BMERRREVREGINZERERS
BEY) - DA ARSI RIRSRENBRERE - RMIHKM
BTEERAEEY  HARERRE  #7F BIENEE:

o Handling: Ensuring separation of hazardous
wastes from general wastes

o RE:BMRAZTEVRE-—REYDREE

o Storage: Storing all hazardous wastes in suitable
containers with labels for identity; meanwhile
securing storage room to prevent unauthorized
access

s RF:BMBEESEVERTCAARRENGHE
BT - WA ZEINRRE AP IEAR SR AER A

o Awareness: Providing toolbox talk to staff for
advising on types of hazardous wastes, handling
method and storage location

o ERCREBEIBNIY RHEEBESEYE
B R ENMBEALE RS

o Disposal: Engaging only licensed and qualified
hazardous wastes collectors for disposal of such

wastes
s RE: REABELRARATEVREHEEIR
BEY)
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Material ESG issues for the Company
AABEEESGHE

On the other hand, the Group prudently handles non-
hazardous waste as well by imposing such measures
as providing and maintaining recycling bins in different
colours to facilitate wastes separation into metal, plastic
and paper, checking the proper usage of collection
facilities and providing training correspondingly,
assigning appropriate staff to manage collection
facilities and maintaining complete recycling/waste
collection records for future reference. Open burning of
wastes which generates excessive emissions is strictly
prohibited. In order to reduce paper wastes, the major
harmless wastes of the Group, paperless working
environment is promoted. IT systems are encouraged
for administrative work to replace paper
correspondences and records. Meanwhile, used papers
as well as cartridges/toners are collected for recycling
by qualified contractors.

S—HHE ASENTZEREEZEY RESERE
TREEHEKAEAEEED S ERTE BB RAK -
mEWERENESE RSN - WREEESE  RE
AEEBIERREREWIRT TENEW BEYRER
BUHARSE - BEBRREEEBEFRHEY -
HEERGECIEREARDBER(NEAEE T EREZRE
) o EENVE R AR RS REITR T EMER KR
Rk - RS BRMERES BMHAAEERENR
EEER -

Use of Energy and Water

BEIR R AEFT

Another key area of focus in the pursuit of green
operations is resources conservation. Efficient use of
resources promotes sustainability, meanwhile
enhancing operating efficiency. Therefore, it benefits the
Group from both environmental and financial
perspectives.

BRHEREERGEEENS — 5% - BRUERERE
BRI AR - AR 2ERE - At - IRRR
B AEm S HAREEET
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We adopt a resources monitoring mechanism aiming at
tracing and monitoring resources consumption
throughout our operations continuously. It facilitates the
analysis of resources efficiency and identification of
improvement opportunities for optimizing use of
resources. In particular, we keep track of the latest
technology on machinery’s energy efficiency, and
upgrade our equipment fleet accordingly. Furthermore,
energy friendly work practices and skills are
communicated to employees regularly to develop staff
awareness of resources conservation.
BAMRAEREAKE - BN HEBRREAETE
BOERER  EOONMERMELREERBICERER
BECEK S - AR E - ROIBRRSEIHR LB - I
MR R EHAR - o BRAESAmME TERRRT
EB R R - IR B IHEHNERNER -

For energy conservation in business operations, the
Group adopts a holistic management approach from
selection of energy saving equipment such as LED/T5
fluorescent tubes or better over traditional light bulbs
and Grade 1 Energy label air conditioners, to
implementation of energy saving practices such that we
maintain air conditioner temperature at 25 degree
Celsius, post energy saving labels in the workplace and
switch off idle lightings.
EITEBEENmAE R TER - REBRNERER
Tt BB LED/To 28 el ok B B e iR B A IR E 5 e
B RA-REREEER B ESERRE
RIFEEK25E - ELESMMRANETEEIREE Ml - IF(E
RrEE-

The same approach applies to water as we deploy
water-saving equipment, cultivate water-saving
considerations within the organization and advocate
resources conservation behaviour of our people.
HAEAKEMA -8t GIARBEH KRR - AHBE
HEUKE S BB E TEHNER
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Other Environmental Impacts
AREZE

In addition to emissions control and resources
conservation, we exert ourselves in minimizing all
negative impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

BRESBER RE QBRI - BRPTPRERDERIER
RABRNPIAEBETE -

The Group has established a sound risk management
system led by the Risk Management Committee. It
manages the overall risk level of the Group, which takes
into consideration environmental risks among other
operating risks. Significant environmental risks are
identified for developing adequate mitigation plans. We
ensure sufficient resources are deployed for
implementation of these mitigation plans so as to
reduce environmental risks.
AEBECRRYREEARERGE  HEAREEZE S
B PEBASREEEBRARKT  BRERRELLE
B AZE - BB BB ERERIREAR LA%IJED;S,%M
FTEl - ZHFERREMREGMERAIINEEIHEIR - A
RIRIRIE RS -

E>

The Group upholds the principle of environmental
protection and execute in every detail. For instances,
we consume no shark fin or other endangered species
at any company banquets or events.
REBETRRRA - ZEFENTME - flan - HME
ERARIZEESEHPRIRA AN E MR EDE -
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Social Employment and Labour Practices
HEERBREIER

B1 Employment
B11E1E

Material ESG issues for the Company
AABEEESGHE

Employment
1z

The Group recognizes employee as one of the key
elements to its sustainable development. We are
committed to establishing a close and caring
relationship with our employees. We provide a fair and
safe workplace, promote diversity to our staff, and
provide competitive remuneration, benefits and career
development opportunities based on their merits and
performance.
AEERETIRAUMBEERNBRER Y — - BABD
HETRUYRIEER KRMAEBITITEATLEEMNIIE
R BEESZ T TREETIEHRKRRIEHEA
R NEB BN R EREREE -

Employees’ remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the market information and individual
performance and are reviewed on a regular basis. The
remuneration policy is reviewed by the Board from time
to time. In addition to basic remuneration, the Group
also provides medical insurance, makes contributions
to provident funds and provides other benefits to
employees.
BIFMARS2RTSEMREARREMmE - WiEMHIE
HBE - EEETRBS *ﬁ%ﬂl% o FRECARF BN - AL
EimE TRHBRERRE - MESHAREMER

In order to maintain a high level of productivity and
quality standard, working hours and rest periods are
determined based on operational needs and regulatory
requirements so as to ensure sufficient rest for
employees.

RRFEKINEENRESEE  RMEEEERE
REEZREFEIEREARKERHE  UBERE IS
FORE °
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As a responsible employer, we exercise due care in
ensuring our human resources policies and practices in
regard to employment, termination, compensation,
working hours, leaves and equal opportunities are
conducted in accordance with the local labour laws and
other applicable regulations.

ERBEMREE HMBERREMER - fE - b -
TIERfE AR TSHEMANERRERERFTE
A YA R B A E AR o

The Group maintains a diversified workforce. We
provides equal opportunities to all staff based on their
capabilities in a fair manner. We accept no tolerance
towards discrimination, regardless of age, sex, marital
status, nationality, disability, religion, etc.
RNEEHEEZ AL TIEBER - MAIABARE S RIKE -
REBEIRHTESRE HBMBTARFENFE - 1
Al EIRARR - BI£E - BR R RAERHEAERAR ©

During the Reporting Period, we did not identify material
non-compliance against employment-related laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.
P B - FPIl S R R R AR R R MO IR A R
WHAEBEENEREZENERTERIEN

Workplace Health and Safety
TSR LT T

The Company seeks to create a healthy and safe
working environment for our employees. An
Occupational Health and Safety (“OHS”) Policy has
been established to provide safety guidelines for staff,
thereby raising the awareness of safety in workplace.
The OHS Policy also defines the health and safety
responsibilities of all staff, from top management to
frontline, in achieving an accident free workplace.
RRARIRBEIITERER TN IIERE - HAEH
EBEREZ2(OHSHEEK - BRABTIRHE L 2R
SIREIEEFLZEEH OHSHBRAATEREETN
RBERZZ2EE ReREREAEANRETIERES
M TAESS T o
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The management are committed to investing adequate
resources to implement the OHS Policy, recognizing all
health and safety issues at work as an integral part of
our business performance and reviewing the OHS
Policy and management system bi-annually. The
management monitors the OHS practices continuously
to ensure compliance with the OHS Policy, meanwhile
striving for continual improvement.
EBREBNKRARHEREMOHSHE - W IIEFHME
BERET2ZEREHRE -39 - WEMF M OHS
BERERFE - EREFEEROHSEHRUBRES
OHSIZK » [EIRENERSS JIBSGE -

In order to further mitigate the health and safety risk in
the workplace, staff will receive appropriate and
adequate training concerning their respective duties
and responsibilities. Such training serves to help staff in
thoroughly understanding and implementing the OHS
Policy. Furthermore, staff are encouraged to propose
reasonable opinions with respect to adequacy and
improvement of the OHS Policy. As such, staff,
especially construction machinery operators, are clearly
aware of the responsibilities on safety operations.
Beside, we cooperate closely with manufacturers of the
machinery in upgrading the safety standards of the
machines to protect the operators, users and service
personnel.

RE-—FSREIESHINERRERZ2RAR B8 IHER
FHABBEBRENBEE S - BEEIEHEI2EE
i S B e OHSEE © Uh4h - Ffs/Eh B Tt OHS B £y
FRUERTEHELAEER - At - BT UGRIZRE
HWMRIER) RO MBRDEFENE < ptHd - FRPIEH
MEERERAE  BRESEMNZ2EE  RER
EE - ARERBAE -
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We have also formed the Safety, Health and
Environmental Management Committee, chaired by the
Chief Operating Officer who takes the final responsibility
and accountability in overseeing all OHS objectives,
related risk and activities, to contribute to on-going
improvement and facilitate information exchanges and
communications on OHS.

BAMEKLLZE  BERREERZES AEER
EREEEE - BREBMBEOHS BIE - MHEARERKED
BB EE - NRIFENE RREFBOHSH{E BRI
/\/ﬁﬁ °©

The Group strives to comply with OHS related laws and
regulations so as to protect the staff and other
stakeholders. During the Reporting Period, we did not
identified material non-compliance with occupational
safety and health-related laws and regulations.
RNEBBRETOHSHAERRER  WREEBIRE
R A - RIEHHE AT EERBEEITEBE
3 BETE AR ROERIER

Staff Training and Development
B TR # R

To satisfy organization’s needs and equip staff with
solid skills, knowledge and safety awareness, we invest
resources and provide trainings for employees in
relation to equipment structure, operational features,
equipment repair and operator safety. By establishing
adequate training programmes, we can provide
necessary occupational knowledge and skills to our
staff.

RimBEBTREME IERBZENRE  AHERLD
BEF - BMBRABRRETIRMHEUMREREE  BRIER
B REHERBEELRZNEI - ERETEENE
FIETHE] - TR B IR0 22 rO B 3R AN S B o
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The Group offers orientation for new employees with
initial information and training in their specific job
functions and skills and condition of employment, so as
to assist them in adapting to their positions. In
particular, environmental briefings and toolbox talks are
offered in enhancing staff’s awareness in
environmentally friendly practices to promote green
operations. In addition, on-going training opportunities
are provided to equip staff with relevant technical skills,
arouse and cultivate safety awareness among staff, and
create a proactive learning atmosphere within the
organization.
AREERMABE TIRHEAMARIIERRE - ReeliE
fﬁ%ﬂﬁiﬂ%%ﬂ*ﬁ*ﬁ& A DA B OB B - RS
CRMIRMREER R ITED - UiIEm 8 THIRRE
ﬁﬂgE’JMa% REAEEE - LI B TRREHFEEI
e LEBHEBERMRE S HABEHELZ2ER RS
BHEBNERZBRN

Further, the Group invites manufacturers of the
construction machinery to provide training on
maintenance services to its mechanics. These training
cover hydraulic, electrical and mechanical, and
electronic and engine systems; as well as the use of
special equipment and tools for troubleshooting. With
such training, our service team can benefit from
shortened machinery downtime and continuous
improvement in maintenance quality.
BEAN - AR BB R MM BLE M A S B IR E R
HiE - ZEEIRERE - BREEMAREF R E
ibffﬁé%i’k:u&ﬁ%%% RN T EMAEEE - F@
AEF - FRAPIIRTS E A R B ME R R A RS R

HERERS -

Training and development resources are reviewed
regularly for their sufficiency and adequacy to ensure a
competent workforce for delivering high quality services
in meeting customers’ needs.

B EHmaEII L ERERESTRERD  UHERL
EEEAREaBFPEREHSE SR -
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Anti-Child and Forced Labour
RETREHST

The Group strictly prohibits child and forced labour of
any kind in accordance with the local labour laws. We
have sufficient and adequate controls in our human
resources processes to prevent employment of child
and forced labour.
REBBRRRBRE MBS EZILEATEANET K&
BT - BMRDEGBANERBRE  UBHLEEAEIR
RIS T o

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not employ
any child or forced labour and there was no non-
compliance against child and forced related laws and
regulations.

R HARE ZIK‘EIE’EMEWHLEIEW@%HMI i
BERIFEEIRRGS THEERRERNIE

Procurement Management

REER

Focusing on construction machinery rental services, the
Company emphasizes on supplier’s performance as the
equipment fleet’s specification is a critical factor directly
affecting our environmental and social performance. As
such, we source our equipment from suppliers including
reputable international equipment manufacturers from
Japan, US, Canada, Europe and China.

RARHEFIREEERMETERTY - AR RERENR
BREEEYEREIMEERNBARREE - HBMAERA
BERMHEEHERER - Bt RPREREBHHEREER
A KB INEAR - BUMN R A B A B R A EE R o
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To upkeep our product standards and organizational
reputation, we maintain sound business relationship
with manufacturers and suppliers, closely monitor their
performance, periodically hold product and operation
training rendered by manufacturers or suppliers,
regularly conduct performance review on our major
suppliers and service providers, and communicate with
them for amendment or improvement if any deficiencies
noted.

RRAFERERZRAKES  RMEKER RHERR
RHRFNEBBE UHNERERR - HfITH2H
SUER S R BT E qn RIRIEIRF - e E B
FEHEFLRBIRERORE  WREREAATHE
BB BIAKEESE

Furthermore, manufacturers will ensure the qualification
of the trainers to deliver training courses with respect to
machine’s operators. Our training department held
more than 100 sessions of product and operation
training during the Reporting Period. We also import
and use the qualified machine with engine complied
with EU Stage 1A, US Tier 3 or Japan MoE standards
or above to comply with Environmental Protection
Department — Emission and Noise level standard.

sEoh - BLER K RABIIA BB ER SRS EriEH
BIIRRIE - RIS HAM - RMBETEIBFIRR—TZ
IR R IRVEIRA - BAPITRHE O o B B BT S B
MAAR « 2B Tier 34} 3 A K MOE AR 4E 1 R 3k A _E Y & 151
W REEEBREREZSOHRR S FRITE -
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Service Excellence
B AR

The Group puts customer relationship as one of the top
priorities. We conduct our business with understanding
of customers’ needs and acting from customers’
perspectives, thereby developing a long term customer
relationship.

AEBREFHBREABEEMIZ — - RAREFPHNFEX
HE - WEPRAKEER BHREFPERREME -

Being a renowned construction machinery services
provider in town, the Group strives to provide consistent
and quality services to customers, which cannot be
achieved without a high-performing technical team. As
such, we put much emphasis on staff training as
above-mentioned, as well as customer training and
support. It enhances the machinery operators’ skills,
safety responsibility and reduces unnecessary wearing
and tearing of the machinery.

ERMAE BRERMIRTE MR RXEE NIRRT
REBHEN—ELRT - MUEREBRRL ORI
B - Ek - HPIEFER LX) 8 THEIIARE
Pl kX iE - ARSI RS EMRIEFENREE &
2EERFED TV EHETEIE RS -

Meanwhile, customer service hotline has been
established to collect customers’ feedbacks, regardless
of appreciation or complaint. Our professional customer
service staff are responsible for following up on the
feedbacks timely to improve customer experience. To
facilitate better responses, diversity service hotlines are
supported by different divisions.

ITH¢ %Fﬁa i%)ﬁﬁﬁi‘%*ﬂﬁuw%%ﬁ E’J%’i‘f,\&&
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In order to provide clear overview of the services and
products offering of the Group, marketing brochures
are prepared to help introduce our service details and
product specifications. To facilitate customers in
making informed purchasing orders, we make reference
to information provided by our suppliers and
manufacturers in preparing marketing materials so as to
reflect true and fair information of our services and
products, meanwhile complying with the Trade
Description Ordinance.

REHEERNEEMREHRRE REMOBHTE - HM
MmN T EBIN BIRTS A REMMAE - RFE
BEPEBRBEMBEA T TERBE  BANGEREH
MER2EHHEEHIRERREROER  BEEEMH
RNEME2HNEMHRBRERER - AETREE @S
BRIEBIEVRRE -

Product Quality
EmEE

The Group maintains its product quality through
continuous enhancement.
NEBRBRENEHIFERLG S -

In regard to the basics, as abovementioned, our
machinery are supplied by well-known manufacturers
over the world with high quality standard. Our workshop
staff are well trained to maintain all equipment fleet in
good operating conditions.

AN F o AN BRI A Bt R AR B
g REEEERS  c RANEEIEASNREER - 7
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As for quality enhancement, the Group actively looks
for improvement ideas, comments and requests from
technicians, customers and salespersons for product
recondition, modification and redevelopment so as to
catch up promptly with the fast changing market needs.
Moreover, we keep increasing the portion of machines
with engines complying with the US Tier 3 or Japan
MoE standard in our equipment fleet to reduce
emissions. We ensure our equipment fleet are properly
labelled in accordance with EPD’s requirements
regarding NRMM and QPME. We believe our
tremendous efforts in improving service offering and
product quality will receive much appreciation and trust
from our customers.

HEBESRATH  AEEBEGESKEMAS EP R
HEABRERNE BEAERRHNSERSR &
AREN  NBEREBENTSEEE - 1IN BEIR
PEEIE - RAIAVTETE BB RS 5 B Tier 33k A AN MoE
SEM BT R ERANLD - BMRRDBRRRE
B BINRMM K QPME 77 T # 17 7E i 3R il AR 2 RIR 4 -
BIEE RMARSREEEREREEMENERX
BHEENEFNSEEE REE -

Data Privacy

BRI

The Group respects privacy of personal data. We
guarantee to implement all possible controls as
practicable to protect our stakeholders’, including our
employees’, personal data. We ensure our work
practices comply with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance as a minimum in protecting personal data.
REBEERAEHILE - RMREZTEERABA
ITIEGIREEAREERA(BEEL)WEAER - HM
BRIESREREBAEHN TEEDTEMEAER (L
=) &1 -
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Material ESG issues for the Company
AABEEESGHE

In respect of sensitive business and personal
information, the Group implements strict internal
controls in safeguarding our data, in particular the
transaction data with our suppliers, business partners
and customers, so as to protect the interests of our
stakeholders. Terms regarding business data
confidentiality have been stipulated on both our
employee handbook as well as employment contract.
HEBROEBREAER  KEEBETHREHAEDEE

TAREBEMER  FRlIEERER  EBRBHELEP
MR ZBUIE - HMREERANTE - BN ETFM
RABEE KRT AR TS BRI o

During the Reporting Period, we did not identify material
non-compliance with service, product and data privacy-
related laws and regulations.

REmERE BMUBEERBEETNFARG EakE
HALBR AR LERIER

Anti-Corruption

KRES

The Company implements adequate internal controls
for preventing and detecting corruption, bribery and any
other kinds of fraudulent activities. To prevent bribery
and corruption, we have established and implemented
the Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy which sets
out the standards of conduct that employees are
required to follow. Furthermore, we have also
formulated a procedures for Reporting Possible
Improprieties on matters of integrity related matters with
a whistle-blowing mechanism to encourage employees
and other stakeholders to report any suspicious
misconduct, while protecting the whistle-blowers from
any partial treatment.

RABFRDEMAIEEIEREE - T IERERES - B
B R EM AR N EEE RS - RV ILBREERE)S - &K
MESIEREBRBEERESBER  EPHIEIN
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We have also periodically organized seminars and
training in relation to anti-corruption measures and
guidelines, operating practices and business ethics for
our staff, thereby enhancing their awareness.
BAMERRELIEBRARRESHEERIES - EEF
RREEEENRAGREI - MR8 TEH -

During the Reporting Period, we did not identify any
cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

RS ARE - B EBREM TS - R - HGF
Foft BEARRAR UM MIE R

Caring for the Community

Bt E

In an effort to building a prosperous society, other than
providing high quality machinery to our customers, the
group strives to provide positive support to the local
community in which it operates. This commitment is
underscored best in the company value of respect,
helpfulness and selflessness.

REZRERME BRAEPREASHENEMIN K&
BB REEMEARIEHBERSIE - WEBRDE
BARNRNBE - BIAREALIE o

In living out the Company’s value, the group often
encourages staff to serve the community through
various channels, both financially and non-financially,
including volunteering and community initiatives. We
offer all necessary support to our staff participating in
such activities, including special leaves, allowances,
etc.

RBEARER TEELTEHEIRBZENH R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AP RENTALS HOLDINGS LIMITED
DRAEEZRERDF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AP Rentals
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 106 to 176, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Making another century of impact
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

MREEARRBRMANFEXZHE - RAYHA
PG BREANBEARRERNTH - BLF
HRAERMETERRAMBBRREAZAR
ETRERN - BT SHELEREHEBNE
B

Key audit matter
BEEHEE

Impairment assessment of plant and machinery

P55 R el 1B AT A

We identified the impairment assessment of plant and
machinery as a key audit matter due to the significance of
the carrying value of plant and machinery to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and the
judgements associated with the assessment of the
recoverable amount of plant and machinery by the
management of the Group.

ERRE MM e R A E S ERE S M RRNEZE L
K EREEEREEME Ry AT = & 5T e &)
HIET - BAPIBRIME MR B R ERT FIE

As disclosed in the note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying value of plant and machinery
reported under property, plant and equipment as at 31
March 2017 was HK$184,033,000.
WMINGRE SR 15 FT B EE - BR2017 463 HA31H -
MHE - BERIFEETHEREEXEMROEDER
184,033,000 7T ©

As detailed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the determination of the recoverable amounts
of the assets is based on the higher of:

WANER S B RS TR IR T 51 5 ATAFal - & E A P Bl & FE R A
TEEHNREEET :

° Value in use, based on the estimation on the future
profitability from leasing the assets, future utilisation
and future lease rates, and
ERAEE EERMTHEEETRAKRBFEE
7 ARERBERRAREEE - &

o Fair value less cost of disposal, based on the
estimation on resale values, with reference to the
historical disposal values or market transactions.
AFEREEXREN  EES2RBAHEEEBERT
HBREERMFTEEEEEE -

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MBS NAHRARETERETRE

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of plant and machinery included:
B E R ERL RS MR EE TR P B E 7 248

° Understanding the management’s impairment assessment
process on identifying assets that may be indicative to be
impaired, and evaluating the reasonableness of the
management’s assessment with reference to the utilisation
and income generated from the plant and machinery in
recent years;

B EIR BN B Rl st B I R BURRE B & E R AT AhOR
EHBIRE - W2 R F MG A A 8 1S 5 M P EE £
WARZEREELNT RS SIE

° Assessing the reasonableness of the management’s key
assumptions used to estimate the value in use of the
plant and machinery by evaluating the probability from
leasing and estimated income generated from the assets
with reference to the historical utilisation and lease rates,
management’s business plan, or other relevant
information in the industry; and
2BBEERBARES  BEENEBTESEMT
FEMER  AEHEEETRONENE N REEME
AR A AR E 12 B (5T B M i ey i B (B (B
FIEANEEREREEE &

° Assessing the reasonableness of the fair value less cost
of disposal estimated by the management by checking,
on a sample basis, to the recent disposal values, third
parties’ quotations or transaction prices of similar assets
in the market.

FiRmExREmS FRUEENOHLEEE  £=5
MMESKZE - TREREMETO A TERDEK

RERERE -
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Key audit matter
HREETER

Recoverability of trade receivables

B 5 EW R oK B2 E

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a
key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the consolidated financial statements as
a whole and the judgements associated with the
assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables by
the management of the Group.
ERBHRRFIBEBBEEMBERANEENLUR &
SEEIRENGE SR KGIERN P K EIRE A E L e 2
B - BAIHERIE S EYGRIEN AT W EIIRE AR E =
I8 o

As disclosed in the note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the trade receivables amounted to
HK$61,027,000, out of which HK$51,271,000 were
past due but not impaired as at 31 March 2017.
WMANARE B RS R AR M T 18 TR EE - M2017F3 A31H -
B 5 FE W K8 561,027,000 % 7T+ E 51,271,000 7T
FIEE B ERRE -

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, in determining the recoverability of overdue
trade receivables, management judgements are
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including debt ageing, settlement history
and collection after the end of the reporting period,
project status, business relationship with customers
and general economic and market conditions.
WMANERE KM T 5 AIKEE - BIRERETANES
JRE AR T B RT U [ A2 2 B - 7B PO AT A 3% 55 e R IR B iR
HRERBERRELHE  BEEBERE  SEIHERR
HREMREOWOIBER HEEE BEPHEBKHRER
A R BE RS 4578 R T 33k S

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANESTNMNHERETSRETEE

Our procedures in relation to the recoverability of trade
receivables included:
BPIt E B IR UGRIEH) P W B R E B iR e 845 -

° Obtaining an understanding of how allowance for trade
receivables is estimated by the management;
B R IR anfa i 5t B 5 R R SRR

o Checking the accuracy of the ageing of trade
receivables, on a sample basis, to the documents
supporting the recognition of receivables and the credit
term granted;

FiBEZE AR ERIE KR B EE R -
BinEE 5 R KFIAR R T 5 LR

° Evaluating the management’s assessment on the
recoverability of trade receivables by examining, on a
sample basis, the settlement history and the collection
after the end of the reporting period of these
receivables; and
FRMBEERZERRFIEN S E RS RNMERE
B EIER - R E R E YR 5 R FIER AT IR B2 R
TEHE RS - &

° Assessing the information in respect of the business
relationship with customers and general economic and
market conditions provided by the management.

AR EREEMRREERTPNEBHEARERL
BR ISR E R

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AR Y 2 Gl

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

BAMER  RESAMBBRREBESIHFAE
RRRFFRERMERNEREREULRIS A E
RiE - WIRBHEEBIERERZBRREEE
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RIE - BB BAR SRR AT RARIEE K o
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Chung Yin Lawrence.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AR A 1Bm M H A 2 U

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE—_ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

Revenue

Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses
Administrative expenses
Listing expenses
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive

income for the year

Earnings per share
— Basic (HK cents)

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

$HE RARISAA
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Annual Report 2017
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2017
—E—+F
Notes HK$’000
ih=s FHET
6 200,491
(154,100)
46,391
7 4,768
1,956
(34,363)
(1,111)
9 (2,358)
15,283
10 (3,312)
11 11,971
14 1.41

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHT

239,341

(162,513)

76,828

2,552
494
(27,890)
(21,265)
(1,689)

29,030

(8,107)

20,923

2.94



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e IR R

At 31 March2017 R-ZE—+F=A=+—H

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment

Deposit placed for a life
insurance policy

Current Assets

Inventories

Trade receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Investment in certificate of deposit

Bank deposit with original maturity
over three months

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Tax liabilities

Obligations under finance leases —
due within one year

Borrowings — due within one year

Bank overdraft

Net Current Assets (Liabilities)

FRBEE
ERN G
SRIREFK

RBEE

TE

EHREFOR ek
B RIR
FRBERE
REMBEBE=EAN
RITIFK
EHEIRRITIF K
RITHRBRMIRE

nRBEE

85 REAMEN IR
HIAAE
BEHESME —
—FR3H

B — —FA2H
RITEX

RBEE(BE) FE

Total Assets less Current Liabilities @& ER ARSI A E

2017

—E—+F

Notes HK$’000
M 5E FHET
15 192,763
16 2,565
195,328

17 12,583
18 63,540
19 6,047
20 10,038
20 2,360
20 44,960
139,528

21 44,336
808

22 45
23 33,802
20 -
78,991

60,537

255,865

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

2016
—EF—RF
HK$’000
FHBT

169,806

2,494

172,300

6,898

77,581

22,292

106,771

55,185
7,270

285
75,199
167

138,106

(31,335)

140,965
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ARE MBS AR R

At31 March2017 R-ZE—+F=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F —ET—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E F#ExT FAT
Non-current Liabilities FRBASE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 24 22,433 20,384
Obligations under finance leases — MEMSEMF —
due after one year — 1% 2| Hp 22 = 45
Borrowings — due after one year B — —F1& 5 E 23 - 44
22,433 20,473
Net Assets BERE 233,432 120,492
Capital and Reserves EXKHE
Issued capital BEITIRA 25 864 27
Reserves s 232,568 120,465
Total Equity mrER 233,432 120,492

The consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to 176 were R F106BE EF 176 B 2 G AU BEREEZ R
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 201746827 A EEE &It & RIZ#ETZ - I

June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: BTIEERREE
LAU PONG SING CHAN KIT MUI, LINA
ZIF K B2
Director Director
EE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE_F

EH)R

== = eSS

Issued Share
capital premium
2R
A& ROEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT
(Note i) (Note i)
(HzEi)  (BsEiD)
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4 18 27,378 -
Profit and total comprehensive  ANF &R | % 2 s A58
income for the year - -
Dividends recognised as RESRMRES (F3E13)
distribution (note 13) - -
Avrising from reorganisation BRMESE (27,351) 129,794
At 31 March 2016 R201643 A 31H 271 129,794
Profit and total comprehensive  REEEHM &2 ENEEE
income for the year = -
Dividend recognised as BRADEARE
distribution (note 13) (FizE13) - =
Issue of shares upon B BT BTRG
capitalisation (note 25(iv) (P35 25(v)) 686 (686)
Issue of new shares pursuant to 184 & R AR E (T
the initial public offering R (MEE25W)
(note 25(v)) 151 113,249
Share issue expenses BHBTRE - (10,012
At 31 March 2017 R2017%F3H31H 864 232,345

Notes:

Issued capital of the Group as at 1 April 2015 represents the paid up
capital of AP Rentals Limited, while issued capital of the Group as at 31
March 2016 and 31 March 2017 represents the paid up capital of the
Company.

Share premium represents the difference between the nominal amount
of the share capital issued by the Company and the aggregate of the
nominal amount of the issued share capital and other reserves of AP
Rentals (BVI) Holdings Limited, a subsidiary which was acquired by the
Company pursuant to the Group Reorganisation (as described in note
2).

Merger reserve represents the difference between the amount of share
capital and share premium of the Company issued, and the issued
share capital of AP Rentals Limited exchanged in connection with the
Group Reorganisation.

In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau
Special Administrative Region, the subsidiary registered in Macau is
required to transfer part of its profits of each accounting period of not
less than 25% as legal reserve, until it reaches an amount equal to half
of the capital.

Merger
reserve

BHRE
HK$'000
THT
(Note il
(B &Eii)

(102,443)

(102,443)

(102,443)

fieE

AP

Legal Translation Retained
reserve  reserve profits Total
EERE ERRE REOEA @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
THT THET THET THET
(Note iv)
(FizEiv)
12 (5) 83,184 110,569
- - 20,923 20,923
- - (11,0000  (11,000)
12 (5) 93,107 120,492
- - 11,971 11,971
- - (2,419) (2,419)
- - - 113,400
- - - (10,012
12 (5) 102,659 233,432

REFER2015F 4 A1 BB BITRAIETEF
HEBRARMNEHRAN - MAKEN2016F 3
FA31 B Kk201743 831 HHE BT ARIFE AR
AR EHREA -

M&tn i B AR B BEITIRA LR S HEARQ TR
15 £ [ = 48 P Y2 BE A9 B BB A 7] AP Rentals (BVI)
Holdings Limited #) 2 31 TAR A R Kb fEBEEE S
BB 2 =58 (KT sE2 Frat) o

BHREEHEARREBTRASE BN EESR
REEEEAMRBRTEAEEERARSHITR
K2 ZH e

IRIER PR B FT IR R AL 58 377 1§ - HORPIRE
it B9 B /B8 2 A 8 B & & 5t HITE T D R 25% K9
BN SR EAERE  ERETRENEER—
FHDH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE—_ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Allowance for doubtful debts
recognised, net
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Finance costs
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Interest income
Listing expenses

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Placement of deposit with original
maturity over three months

Placement of pledged bank deposits

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from redemption of
investments in bonds

Purchase of investments in bonds

Purchase of investments in
certificate of deposit

Net cash used in investing activities

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Bl EFIRE PSR
BEEHRE
BEEREERE

REFZHMAREFE

2017
—F—tF
HK$’000
TR

15,283

168

41,108
2,358

(2,268)

(573)
1,111

57,187
(5,685)

9,986
(10,849)

50,639
(7,725)

42,914

438

(68,335)

(10,038)
(2,360)

6,538

(6,047)

(79,804)

2016
AN
HK$'000

T

29,030

1,694

31,128
1,689

(2,371)

(265)
21,265

82,170

5,663

(18,396)
(12,195)

57,142
(2,005)

55,137

208
(81,026)

20,218

5,005
(5,005)

(60,600)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE_F

Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of new shares

pursuant to the initial public offering

Interest paid

Listing expenses paid

New borrowings raised

Repayments of borrowings

Repayments of obligations under
finance leases

Dividend paid

Repayments to a shareholder

Net cash from (used in)
financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

Analysis of the balances of cash
and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash

Bank overdraft
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2017
—F—tF
HK$’000
TR

113,400
(2,358)
(7,172)

(41,441)

(285)
(2,419)

59,725

22,835

22,125

44,960

44,960

44,960

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

2016
—E—N

HK$’000
THETT

(1,689)
(11,626)
63,996
(17,763)

(490)

(11,000)
(21,730)

(302)

(5,765)

27,890

22,125

22,292
(167)

22,125
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE—_ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

AP Rent

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company and
registered in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands on 11 June 2015. The shares of
the Company have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 8 April
2016. The addresses of the registered office of the Company is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business
is Unit 15, 19/F Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details
of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note
33.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

Pursuant to the group reorganisation to rationalise the Group’s
structure in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange, AP Rentals (BVI) Holdings Limited was
interspersed between AP Rentals Limited and its shareholder
(the “Shareholder”) on 21 July 2015, and then the Company
was interspersed between AP Rentals (BVI) Holdings Limited
and its shareholders on the same day (the “Group
Reorganisation”). After that the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group. The
Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries resulting
from the Group Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing
entity.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group
which include the results, changes in equity and cash flows of
the companies now comprising the Group for the year ended
31 March 2016 had been prepared as if the Company had
always been the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group and the current group structure had been
in existence throughout the year ended 31 March 2016, or
since their respective dates of incorporation/registration, where
it is a shorter period.

als Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

RNAFR2015F6 A11 BREFASHEA
AVEBE Z+—F (1961 FE35VAN » &£4R
AR ERSHS AN AEREE
RArHASESHEM XQRRMNE
2016F4 ASHRIEABHEXIMER
ANEl([BRA]) £ o AABFMFER
#) b HF /A Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands * B+ 2L XM BE B
BERDIHRBIEEE 1 ELRES 1915

o
z=
£z °

ARRRREERAR - MBRBRNEIE
ARBFHIRE NI FESS

HmEMBHERIIABT(ETD 25 - &
TR ARBEES -

REBARARROEBRI LT NEE
ETEESHENUBEER Bt AP
Rentals (BVI) Holdings Limited 742015 & 7
A21BHERTEAEEBRATRAER
ROBRRDz2HE - MARBRFABHER
AP Rentals (BVI) Holdings Limited 5 £ & 5
ZE(TSRBEAR] - & XRAAIKAR
FAKAEEZAAINIERAR - E1TE
BEEHE  AARRRREMERHEKD
REBWRBFBELCEERE -

BREEREKIEES A FEZE201643
AS1HIEFEMES EXEHRHAESRK
EMNFEBEEREMEEKEE KEAE
HEPRRGERERERE THRE B
MAEZE2016F3 AT HILFERKEES
B AL,/ FE M B B (AR S HARS A 2%)
IARARB —EHBERFHEKAERS QA
KPR AR M B ATSE B —ETFAE ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BHEZE—_Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint Operations
Disclosure Initiative
Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation
Agriculture: Bearer Plants
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE—_ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the Related
Amendments'

Leases?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

Disclosure Initiative*

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses*

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle®

E 28 18 14 R £ M HET & 8
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7R 5 3 45 A A A T 5 B AR 1B R A
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U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

or 1 January 2018, as appropriate
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BHEZE—_Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are:

° all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE—_ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2017, application of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have an impact on the classification
and measurement of the Group’s financial assets.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZE_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations, principal
versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on the amounts
reported as the amounts of revenue recognised are subject to
variable consideration constraints, and more disclosures relating
to revenue is required. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the
directors of the Company perform a detailed review. In addition,
the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE—_ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$3,011,000 (2016: HK$3,179,000) as
disclosed in note 29. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the
application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new
requirements may result changes in measurement, presentation
and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial
effect until a detailed review is completed.

Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2017

ERUKREERFE165E [ H
B @

EREEEN SRR - MHE DR
R (G T GIOME R 50 ) L R 57 8 BOR
EEBHE THASaBECAENHE
TV % - B8 B @Y HRL IR Z B
TRMBEENRREN S His BER
EERHAREEN KUK (EhaE) A
BETNYEMELRE - RBLRES
BME AEEREEELRENRET
BELEERE - RIEE BN HREER
Z£16% SHEECENEBENRESE
BARSRFESS  HENRERSRE

ETE

HAAAGHREAR  BEMBREE
AIE16 RO HEET B G ERIFE 7R
HEASEERTE  TEESRKEEA
BHENERKEHEARMERE -

o B B

THE -

SERNFE16HRELRE

SANM T 20 P #E B8 - AN ER 201753 A
31 BH) M AIESE A & & & % 3,011,000
7 70 (2016 4F : 3,179,00078 7t ) ° 1 2 5F
HERNESELHERTEEBU B REER
F16FRETHEN TR - HAEEHER
FREEENEHAMEZSHENRESR
& RIFENEREENBREEAZE16
REFAREEREHHEENERANIER
o LEAN - JE AT AR SE AT BE B B SRS
e 2 RBELREEH - A RE
REAERA - HUBEEELSEME
B ER o

BREXHEEN  ARBDEREY  EF
Hir BB mELEN REET e
HEAMBRREREATE



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Z'i_'

NN

B MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BHEZE—_Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange of goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE—_ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BHEZE—_Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited
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AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Impairment of tangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

BREEZRE®)

MEREBEBREGEE  SEREE
BRAZTHGET 2 A TRESE @
BT EEETSRANEZEAEER
EEEYERRREGESRRET Y E
EE - B A1 2 BT ) BB 3 1B 25 h i

N

E@MTH
TREERERABREEEENATA
BRUESHET R 77 B HERR o

EMEERERBBEVNIRATEAE -
WEXETEREERECRBEERKEMN
MR ZEA  RUITERSMASREE
FEMBENATE AW EEXE
BEENRHENR RERME)

ERMEE

AEENSREED BRERREYGE -
PREFEMEECHERAEME ¥
REREREETE - WERTABER L
EERMEENR S B HEEER LRBURE
R ABRATABERNLEREEREM
BT 5T 2 RANHIE P E 2 R R AR
BEZEHMEEERS -

Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZHﬂ

NV N

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ—=-=

AP Rent

B MR M T

—tEF=ZA=tRALFE

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including deposit placed for a life insurance policy, trade
receivables, bank deposit with original maturity over three
months, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates
that the Group’s management has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition,
held-to-maturity investments (including investment in certificate
of deposit) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amounts are reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
borrowings and bank overdraft) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Rental income from machinery leasing under operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Operating service income and other service income are
recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Annual Report 2017

I 325 72 52
WHEREWABBREZ ATEAE i
FERMHEFRE - HINREMAELE
CHGEE

mE MR AT 2R %ﬂi%ﬁﬁg
?&H%ﬂﬁ ARG B M EERN AT
B2 R EZERR - R -

o BYEBBE

REHER TR KEEERRARIERE
HEFHAERERESR -

A AR A U B L A AR TS UL A R 1R 4 PR 75
FRRERR ©

MEWASREREERNSAERERF
FIRSHEI R MEBEBRN XSRS HER
R EEERAFRNMGFARAS
WAERITREZEE REFEZLLE

RN

WhE  REREEREREE(EFE—R
BEERHESETEEREREREGREE
ZEE)EEREZEFTRAFAZTEE
A BEZRFEBEECKB EAFEH
ERZRHHE -

BEBRRBIENEHRHEEZHATHA
EREREMRMZBRERA - B #E
BARZ BRI o

P EL A SRR AN EE A ER I R R A 1R



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZHﬂ

NN

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE_F

B MR

== = eSS

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
statements of financial position and the corresponding tax base
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.
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Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as obligations under
finance leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and Provident
Fund Individual Accounts, are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets within
the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of plant and
machinery

The Group's major operating assets are plant and machinery
included in property, plant and equipment. Management
performs review for impairment of these plant and machinery
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying values may not be recovered.

The recoverable amounts of the plant and machinery are
determined based on the higher of value in use calculations and
fair value less costs of disposal. In determining the value in use
calculation, the management estimates the future profitability
from leasing the assets, future utilisation and future lease rates,
while the determination of the fair value less cost of disposal
requires the management to estimate the resale values with
reference to the historical disposal values or market
transactions. Where the actual cash flows are less than
expected, or changes in facts and circumstances result in
reduction of estimated cash flows, impairment loss may arise.
At 31 March 2017 the carrying amount of plant and machinery
is HK$184,033,000 (2016: HK$159,320,000).
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7T (2016 £F : 159,320,000787T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZE_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

Recoverability of trade receivables

Allowance for doubtful debts is made when there is objective
evidence that the recoverability of trade receivables due from
customers becomes doubtful. As at 31 March 2017, the
carrying amounts of trade receivables are HK$61,027,000
(2016: HK$71,185,000), out of which HK$51,271,000 (2016:
HK$64,305,000) were past due but not impaired. In determining
the recoverability of overdue trade receivables, management
makes assumptions and applies judgements in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including debt ageing,
settlement history and collection after the end of the reporting
period, project status, business relationship with customers and
general economic and market conditions. The directors of the
Company believe that there will not be a material change in the
estimates or assumptions which are used in the calculations of
recoverable amounts of trade receivables. However, when the
actual outcome or expectation in the future is less or more than
the original estimates, additional or reversal of impairment loss
may arise.

The Group’s revenue represents the net amounts received or
receivable for machinery leased, goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
returns.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

Leasing income of machinery R AR AR A
Sales of machinery and parts e K T &
Operating service income LRSI
Other service income HAb B WA

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

BEZRRREBENATREREE
EERBERBIEREFE S EKFIE
WA EIEE KRR RRAERE - B
20173 A31H r BESEWFIANREE
7$61,027,000% 7T (20164 : 71,185,000
7 o0 ) H f151,271,000% st (2016 4 :
64,305,000, 7T) B @ BB RRE - BIRE
A TE 8 HR B 5 FE UK ERTE A AT Uk B 72 [ B
TEH RRER R A AT % S IR W R IE B) fR 4% &
WERRIELHE  BEBRKERE £8
RERNRERRENKEIER  HE®
B BEFPHEBBERUREELERT
Bk - ARREFMHE AHEEHEK
HRIER) AU E € BATER A st sk BB AT
eHRERNES - A MAERERER
K TEAME R B R A hET - BIRT A IR
REINRE BB SO E B &R -

AEBENHRRANETSEBBIZH HHER
W HE R R KRR IR 0 B WS B UK
FFE (MR MRER) -

REBOKZEDHTAT

2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FHT
143,121 171,777
17,612 36,957
26,512 20,329
13,246 10,278
200,491 239,341
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE—_ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

For management purpose, the Group is organised based on its
business activities. The Group determines its operating
segments based on these business activities that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, i.e. the
executive directors of the Company, for the purpose of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

Leasing —  Leasing of machinery, and related operating
and other services

Trading —  Sales of machinery and parts, and related
operating and other services

Segment information about these reportable and operating
segments is presented below:

Segment revenue and results
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Revenue Y=

Segment revenue from external K EINEBE P H D EB
customers

Results 4

Segment results DEEE

Unallocated income R BCUA

Unallocated expenses Ko x

Consolidated profit before taxation KEBML A BRTIADG

of the Group

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

REERN AEBREERBEBALS -
AEERUEXHEDETHEEDS
HEREEREE (AR RRNTESR)TE
HIER > ADBEERMFHEREA -

BERgmE Z!K IR BEE B MW E R

E8E [ 5 A P 2R ALL 5 Ff N

T

ME — #WHE  URBERRERE
ftb BR 75

BB — BERZHHEE  AREEL
& R E A AR TS

BRANERNZ2RRELLEDBHDFERR
&I

T ERES
BZE2017F3A831BILEE

Leasing Trading Total
HE = e
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FEx FHET
182,528 17,963 200,491
38,065 5,142 43,207
982

(28,906)

15,283
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BHEZE—_Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

o ER R R I AR ()
BZ2016F3A31BILEEE

Segment revenue and results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Leasing Trading Total
HE BE “eEt
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHT FHET T
Revenue &
Segment revenue from external KEINBEFH D
customers W =5 202,280 37,061 239,341
Results E4
Segment results DEPELE 60,322 10,932 71,254
Unallocated income AHOBWA 410
Unallocated expenses RABLFSE (42,634)
Consolidated profit before taxation REBWEGEEBRTIAT
of the Group Y 7| 29,030
The accounting policies of the reportable and operating BT 2MREE D ST BEREM G4

segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 4. Segment results represent the profit earned
by each segment without allocation of interest income, sundry
income, listing expenses and central administration expenses.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the
information is not regularly reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of performance.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Pl AEBH St RRAAR - DEEES
& 7 #B P BRE U A CHE A B~ FETR I
A~ ETHAX P RITEA AT OR)
HRERTEHFELERRENTE U2
RERRFERE -

DHEERAEREZ®R REZZEE
HUFEMERTERFLERREEER
DB KRB o
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Wi Kk EER @)

HihpER
BZ2017F3A31HILEE

Amounts included in the measure of
segment results:

Allowance for doubtful debts recognised, net

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

BERDBREHENER

ERAREREIR
0% BERRENE
HENZ - B RRE N

168 - - 168
39,280 1 1,817 41,108
2,268 - - 2,268

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BZ2016F3A31HILEE

Amounts included in the measure of
segment results:

Allowance for doubtful debts recognised, net
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

BERDBXEHENEE

ERARGRETE
0% BERRENE
HENE  BERSERR

1,694 = - 1,694
29,597 21 1,610 31,128
2,365 6 = 2,371

1 36 AP Rentals Holdings Limited 3
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers is mainly derived

from customers located in Hong Kong and Macau, which is
determined based on the location of customers.

NCIAL STATEMENTS

= i
nﬂ‘- -

1

| e N

WKk o EBER @

AEERBIMNBEFPFNREERTERE
BIRFINEP - W REF A E

Eo

External revenue: HNERULZS

Hong Kong a5 179,849 195,988

Macau R 20,642 43,353
200,491 239,341

The Group’s non-current assets based on the geographical
location of the owners of these assets are as follows:

AEENFERDEE RUEEERBEM
A ES D) BN

Hong Kong B 190,200 157,324
Macau YR P 2,554 12,482
Singapore N 9 -

192,763 169,806

Note: Non-current assets excluded deposit placed for a life insurance
policy.

Mz : FRBEETERESREREEN-

AP Rentals Holdings limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERDHER &

(Continued)

Information about major customers EBREXEEFHNER

Revenue from customer during the year contributing over 10% REEBEAEEBIZE 10% HEF W
of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: AR :

Customer A BFEA 25,606 26,086

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HtWA

Interest income from: FEWAKRE :
— bank deposits — RITIER 438 8
— investment in bonds and — EHERERERERE
certificate of deposit 42 162
— deposit placed for a life — SBRREFR
insurance policy 93 95
Storage income BEWA 1,555 1,659
Sundry income HMIFU A 2,640 628
4,768 2,552
8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hth=mKkEE

Allowance for doubtful debts EERREEE TS

recognised, net (168) (1,694)
Exchange loss, net T 5 B 18 5 5 (144) (183)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE K& HRE

plant and equipment 2,268 2,371

1,956 494

1 38 AP Renfals Holdings Llimited ~ ©  Annual Report 2017
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9.

10.

Rk e e

FINANCE COSTS 2

Interest on borrowings EFF & 2,350 1,665
Interest on finance leases BEHER S 8 24

2,358 1,689
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FTSFHEEX

Current tax 2 HITIA

Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFIEH = 3,145

Macau Complementary Income Tax SRPSFTIS R T AR 1,232 1,632
1,232 4,677

Under(over)provision in prior years BAFEREBTR GBREE) 31 (110)

Deferred taxation (note 24) REFIE (FsE24) 2,049 3,540
3,312 8,107

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made in
current year as the Group’s has no assessable profits in Hong
Kong. Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 March 2016.

HRAEBNAFEIWERE B S ER
BOR A - MAFERBFIREANEH R
o BAENERIZEE2016F3 A31 8 1E
FERNMFERTEMNN16.5%TH -

AP Rentals Holdings limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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For the subsidiary registered in Macau, Macau Complementary

Income Tax is calculated at 12% of the estimated assessable
profit exceeding MOPB600,000 after the deduction of dividend
paid for both years. During the year ended 31 March 2016,
MOP600,000 dividend was paid by the subsidiary registered in
Macau and the amount was deducted from the assessable

profit.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled from the

profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at applicable tax rate of 16.5%

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax exemption under Macau
Complimentary Income Tax

Under (over) provision in prior years

Effect of different tax rate of subsidiary
operating in other jurisdiction

Others

Income tax expense for the year

Annual Report 2017

B A5 A A

1% 16.5% BB R ENTIE
ARG 2

BARBRBANT IS L
BPSRHERIE TR

M B2
BAFERETE (BEER)

RPRORPIEMOMBARMS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BFIPTS

1 78 Bt 1% 8 38 600,000 8 P9 7T /9 18 51 & 58
Fim A (R EFEEAIRER) B 12%
TE - BZE2016F 3831 BILFE » RIE
P9 i A9 B A B1UR 15F A% 2.600,000 Y8 P
TT o Mz e REE 8RR TR HER -

RERRERAX A EZEE

BEEkEME

ERERFORTATEN B RRNT

2017
—E—tF
HK$°000
TR
15,283

2,522

1,156

(32

31

REMRDEEREEHNHBAT

TRAMENZE
Hitb

REFIHRFAX

(389)
24

3,312

2016
—E—N
HK$’000
FHET
29,030

4,790

4,323
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BHEZE—_Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

B0 (H:E12)

Directors’ emoluments (note 12)

Other staff costs: HM 8 TR :
— Salaries, allowances and
other benefits

— Retirement benefits scheme — RIREFIFT BN

contributions
Total staff costs 488 TR
Auditor’s remuneration Z RN €
Cost of inventories recognised ERIER ZMF BN

as expenses

Depreciation of property, plant ME - BEMERETE

and equipment

Operating lease rentals in respect HERMME=HERS

of rented premises

Note:

The Group has established a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for its Hong Kong employees. The assets of the
scheme are held separately in funds which are under the control of
independent trustees. The retirement benefit scheme contributions
charged to profit or loss represent contributions paid or payable by the
Group to the scheme at 5% of each of the employees’ monthly relevant
income capped at HK$30,000 per month.

The total costs charged to profit or loss for the year of HK$1,860,000
(2016: HK$1,398,000), comprised HK$72,000 and HK$1,788,000
(2016: HK$72,000 and HK$1,326,000) in directors’ emoluments and
other staff costs respectively, and represented contributions paid or
payable to the schemes by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period. At the end of the reporting period, there were no
forfeited contributions available to reduce future obligations.

R TR B RO AF R

— HE 2R R HEMER

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

2017 2016
—E—+F —E— R
HK$°000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
6,428 4,096
44,261 36,914
1,788 1,326
46,049 38,240
52,477 42,336
1,521 1,436
9,659 23,243
41,108 31,128
3,646 4,379

GEE

FAEBEDRBERREERIBHIEAERAHE ([
ERETE]) - ZEtENEEABILERAEEN
EeWADFRA - RMERHIRAERAREFEE
HARREERZEE AT A30,000E TR L
REEREE A AL% BN ZTBIAHEK -

N E R A 8K AR £ 1,860,000 % 7T
(20164 : 1,398,000 87T) * RREEEM e K E
ff & T Ak A 9 572,000 7T K& 1,788,000 JT
(2016 4F : 72,000 7T &% 1,326,000 T) * B E
RAEERE TS HEE N REM A4
oo BEREIR - WU A HERE R
REHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE—_ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

The executive directors of the Company were appointed on 11
June 2015, the non-executive director was appointed on 10
December 2016 and the independent non-executive directors
were appointed on 17 March 2016. Details of the emoluments
paid or payable to the directors of the Company (including
emoluments for services as employees of the Group prior to
becoming directors of the Company) by the Group are as

ARATHMITEEN2015F6 11 BESE -
MIEMITEER20165E 12 10 B ERE -
B IEMITESRER2016F3A17THESR
- AEBENKENARRZEZNHE
(BIERKAEARRESREALEEES
REREOME) FBOT

follows:
Other emoluments
Hibp &
Basic
salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonus contributions
HEARHE -
RURHEAM BAREF
He BF BBTEAL HE L3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT FHET
(Note)
(Ft3E)
For the year ended BZ2017 £3A31H
31 March 2017 LEE
Executive directors: WITES :
Lau Pong Sing 21 3B - 2,651 - 36
Chan Kit Mui, Lina 21 - 2,625 - 36
Non-executive director: FHTES :
Kitagawa Ken piallf= - - - -
Independent non-executive BIIEMITES
directors:
Li Ping Chi FFE 240 - - -
Siu Chak Yu BEF 240 - - -
Ho Chung Tai, Raymond &R 600 - - -
1,080 5,276 - 72
For the year ended BZ=2016 £3831H
31 March 2016 LFE
Executive directors: HITES :
Lau Pong Sing 2IFBBK - 1,763 220 36
Chan Kit Mui, Lina BR2H - 1,861 180 36
Non-executive director: FNTES:
Kitagawa Ken it - - - -
Independent non-executive B IEMITES
directors:
Li Ping Chi THE - - - -
Siu Chak Yu EET - - - -
Ho Chung Tai, Raymond fEZR - - - -
- 3,624 400 72

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

Total

it
HK$'000
F7

2,687
2,661

240
240
600

6,428

2,019
2,077

4,096
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BHEZE—_Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

Note: The discretionary bonus is mainly determined on the basis of the
Group’s and individual performance.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
director and independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Lau Pong Sing is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, each of Mr. Lau Pong
Sing and Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina agreed to waive his/her
unused annual leave entitlement, amounting to approximately
HK$292,000 and HK$239,000, respectively. During the year
ended 31 March 2016, the aggregated amount of paid annual
leave to these two executive directors amounted to
approximately HK$296,000, which was included in “basic
salaries, allowances and other benefits” above. No other
directors waived any emoluments during both years.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

it MISTEAZZUARAEEEERBARER
EWHETE °

PR TEEHE T ZEEREERRA]
RASEEHRERE AR - ElIFTT
EERBUNNTESHE TR EERE
EARRIEFREERE AR -

BIMREENMRERBZRHTHAR » £
XABREEAHEEREERRFITRAR
RRHRFH M E o

HE2017F3 A3 HIEFE @ 2IFKLE
ERZEBLZTEERENEERDAFR
R - o BI{EE 49292,0005% 7T & 239,000
BT e BIE2016F3 A1 BILFE © W%
MERTEFTINNFRELSELNR
296,000/ 7T - BEFALEX [EAF© £
B R AT A o REZMEFE  HEE
fhEEWEEMME -

Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=NE VR B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE—_ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group REEAREERAEZ=IHATHRE(2016
for the year, two (2016: two) of them were directors of the FMB)BARRES  HElehmA%E
Company, whose emoluments are paid by the Group or AT SR A — ] B B R B 1) AN 5 [ MR ER Y
included in management fee charged to the Group by a related BEEBN -BTT=HA(2016F : =) AL
company. The emoluments of the remaining three (2016: three) BEEmT

individuals were as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Basic salaries and allowance and BER % & FORRL R B 2 A
other benefits 2,117 2,001
Discretionary bonus BYIETEAT 272 324
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R /K& 5T &4 3% 54 54
2,443 2,379
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the MEN T TIIBENFERARAESREH
directors of the Company whose remuneration within the EEHEWT :
following band is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE R
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AE
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 T2 1,000,000/ 7 3 3
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the PREFE  AEBWERARNIRETRK
Company or the five highest paid individuals (including directors TEBERFAT(BEEERES) M
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the & 1B /3 0N BR 7 52 [ X N B FRe ) 5% B ol B B

Group or as compensation for loss of office during both years. 718 -

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARe B % Rk I At

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BHEZE—_Z—+tF=A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHBIT
Dividend recognised as distributions AR SFERIER R RIRARFEH 5K
of the Company during the year
2017 Interim — HK cent 0.28 2017 S H — &A% 0.28 1l
(2016: 2016 Interim — HK cent 40) (2016 4F : 2016+ &
per share — 40784l1) 2,419 11,000
No final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 FALEBBE201643 831 BILFEIR
has been paid during the year. Subsequent to the end of the MRERE - RS HEERE - AAF
reporting period, a final dividend in respect of the year ended EFEREBE2017F3 A3 BLFENKR
31 March 2017 of HK0.28 cents (2016: nil) per ordinary share HARR B 7 T A% & 8 AR 0.28 7 Il (2016 % -
has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is &) AR SBATRRER TABRRAE
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming AT AR -
general meeting.
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to ARAHEAANEEGRERRNTIERT
owners of the Company is based on the following data: SIBIRET S -
2017 2016
—B—tF —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
Profit for the year attributable to AR E SRR EARZ R E
owners of the Company for the RAEER AEIS
purpose of basic earnings per share AR A 11,971 20,923

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE—_ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

Number of shares BinEE
Weighted average number of ordinary  FRET & FRRE A & T §)
shares for the purpose of basic L3 % hnAE S 19 25

earnings per share

Notes: MIEE -

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is
based on the profit attributable to owners of the Company using
the weighted average number of shares of in issue during the
year.

i The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year ended i
31 March 2016 is based on the profit attributable to owners of
the Company using 712,800,000 shares in issue during that year
on the assumption that the capitalisation issue as detailed in note
25(iv) had been effective on 1 April 2015.

Number of shares

igng 4]
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
’000 ‘000
T A% &
847,955 712,800

AERBRERBHIRAD RS AR
RN R EFRD BT INEFIOEETE -

HZE2016F3A31HIEFENTREAR
BRTEARRBBEAREREF EEANE
TR 81 B 712,800,000 ¢ 5+ & - & th
BREERNMEBEIT (FIBHR M E25(v) B
HR2015F4 B1BAERK »

No diluted earnings per share are presented for both years as MEE25ZMIEFE E’J%%&%%ﬂ R
there were no potential ordinary shares in issue. FARIEBEEDHITEAR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZE_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

Furniture
Plant and Office and Leasehold Motor
machinery equipment fixtures improvements vehicles Tools Total
HER HE
BERKEH BAERE BEREE  NEEB RE IR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AT THBT BT BT TAT TR
COST BA
At 1 April 2015 20154818 179,928 1,288 65 3,830 10,173 613 195,897
Additions NE 76,027 973 - 1,227 2,135 785 81,147
Dispos